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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I'm Council

          3  Member Stanley Michels, Chairman of the Council's

          4  Committee on Environmental Protection. On behalf of

          5  the Committee, I welcome you to today's hearing on

          6  Proposed Intro. 803-A, which relates to carbon

          7  dioxide emissions from electrical generating units

          8  sponsored by the Speaker Peter Vallone, to my left,

          9  and 23 other members.

         10                 As you probably know, this is the

         11  Committee's second hearing on this issue.

         12                 On December 4th, 2000, we held a

         13  hearing on Intro. 803, and I mention again this is

         14  803-A, which now has been amended, based on

         15  testimony from that hearing and from subsequent

         16  consultations with a host of interested parties.

         17                 The bill was amended in the following

         18  areas:

         19                 1) The Department of Environmental

         20  Protection is designated as the agency to enforce

         21  the reductions in emissions of carbon dioxide from

         22  electric generating units.

         23                 2) The allowable emission rate for

         24  carbon dioxide emissions from electric generating

         25  units is based on emissions within the City during
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          2  the years '97, '98 and '99. Intro. Number 803 only

          3  referred to the total carbon dioxide emissions from

          4  electric generating units during 1999.

          5                 4) The allowable carbon dioxide

          6  emissions rate, based upon new capacity installed in

          7  the City, shall be reduced by 20 percent. Intro. No.

          8  -- The old Intro. No. 803 established a maximum

          9  reduction of up to 30 percent.

         10                 4) The credit trading mechanism found

         11  in Intro. 803 is expanded by adding that the

         12  Department of Environmental Protection may allow the

         13  operator of an electric generating unit to achieve

         14  compliance through the purchase of carbon dioxide

         15  emission credits, including, but not limited to,

         16  credits for investments in energy efficiency, solar,

         17  wind, fuel cells and other strategies that reduce

         18  carbon dioxide emissions in New York City.

         19                 Next we have the penalty provisions

         20  of Intro. No. 803, of a section in 803, are changed

         21  by stating that the operators of electric generating

         22  units that fail to meet their obligations pursuant

         23  to this bill would be liable for a civil penalty in

         24  an amount equal to $3 for each ton of carbon dioxide

         25  emissions in the first year above the requirements
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          2  of the bill, rather than the five dollars, the

          3  amount in Intro. No. 803.

          4                 The new draft states that an

          5  additional civil penalty of one dollar for each ton

          6  of carbon dioxide emissions above the requirements

          7  of the bill would also be imposed for each

          8  consecutive year thereafter that the electric

          9  generating unit fails to comply, instead of an

         10  additional fine of five dollars as stated in the

         11  original bill.

         12                 Finally, the Corporation Counsel

         13  would be allowed to go to court to seek the

         14  imposition of these civil penalties and may seek

         15  injunctive relief against the parties that are in

         16  violation of this law.

         17                 Although certain provisions of the

         18  bill have been changed, the intent has not been

         19  changed. The purpose of proposed Intro. 803-A is to

         20  encourage owners of existing power plants, as well

         21  as new-comers to New York City electric power

         22  industry, to incorporate technological advances in

         23  energy production that increase electricity

         24  generation but do not require an increase in fossil

         25  fuel consumption, and, therefore, do not increase
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          2  carbon dioxide emissions. And, it is clear that we

          3  must do something locally to stem carbon dioxide

          4  emissions, such as the greenhouse gases, since the

          5  President's recent actions have shown that we cannot

          6  expect any leadership on this issue from the

          7  administration in Washington to reduce these gases,

          8  and the earthwarming greenhouse effect.

          9                 So, if we want carbon dioxide

         10  emission rates to decrease, if we want more

         11  efficient power plants installed and older power

         12  plants decommissioned, it is up to us to act, the

         13  City of New York.

         14                 This legislation would ensure that

         15  this new marketplace for electricity will not come

         16  at the cost of public health, air, land and water

         17  quality.

         18                 The end result would be a cleaner,

         19  healthier environment for the City's citizens,

         20  without requiring a sacrifice in energy demands.

         21                 There have been significant changes

         22  to this bill necessitating additional public

         23  comment. Council staff will continue to be available

         24  to talk to those parties with comments or proposals.

         25  We are not voting today on this legislation and the
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          2  bill is still a work in progress.

          3                 Our first witness will be the

          4  Commissioner, Joel Miele, of the New York City

          5  Department of Environmental protection, but first we

          6  will hear from the prime sponsor of proposed 803-A,

          7  the Speaker of the City Council of the City of New

          8  York, Peter Vallone.

          9                 Mr. Vallone.

         10                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much,

         11  Mr. Chair, and my colleagues in the City Council,

         12  Commissioner Miele and Deputy Commissioner

         13  Avaltroni.

         14                 I think what we're doing today is

         15  very important. This is the second and probably next

         16  to last, while we go ahead with the environmental

         17  impact study, concerning a bill which I think is

         18  probably the last breath that we might have in terms

         19  of being a municipality larger than most of our

         20  states, in order to have some common sense and

         21  reason, as we plan ahead for the future energy needs

         22  of this country.

         23                 It strikes me that the decision by

         24  the president not to forge ahead with carbon dioxide

         25  leaves us no choice but to proceed with a sensible
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          2  and reasonable bill as we can.

          3                 And while I don't know anyone in

          4  their right mind that doesn't understand and believe

          5  that we need new energy and we need to go into 21st

          6  century answers for something that were still mired

          7  in the 20th century about, there really still isn't

          8  any concern that's been manifested by those in

          9  control concerning the effects of leaving these

         10  older fossil fuel plants in existence as we change

         11  over to the new, more efficient ones.

         12                 I believe that this is an excellent

         13  way for us to get back into the picture, if you

         14  will, and at least show someone in authority that we

         15  do have concern for the health and welfare of our

         16  people, as well as for their energy needs.

         17                 So, I look forward to, this is the

         18  second and I hope next to last situation where we

         19  could get together with the Administration, come up

         20  with a bill which I think is enforceable, and as

         21  good as we can do from the municipal level, and then

         22  go ahead and see if we can use this back door

         23  approach to getting these older plants closed down

         24  and let not the only motive for energy needs be the

         25  profit that's involved, but also the health and
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          2  welfare of the people that we all serve.

          3                 I thank you very much. I'm looking

          4  forward to a productive hearing on the amendments

          5  that have been made by staff, that have met with

          6  your staff, and look forward to your testimony,

          7  Commissioner. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Speaker.

         10                 I'd like to introduce the members of

         11  the Council who are here.

         12                 To my right is Council Member

         13  Leffler. Next to him, to his left, is Council Member

         14  Carrion, and then we have on the other side, the

         15  extreme left, we have Council Member Robles --

         16  Council Member Freed, I'm sorry, then Council Member

         17  Robles and Council Member Sabini. And Council Member

         18  Fiala is here some place. Oh, he is standing up,

         19  okay.

         20                 Before I do that, and before we hear

         21  from the Commissioner, I'd like to recognize that we

         22  have here in the balcony some children from the

         23  Cathedral Prep School, from the students from

         24  Council Member Sabini's district, and they are high

         25  school students, and I think they were here
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          2  listening to the opening statements and to the

          3  Speaker, so they understand, I think, what's

          4  happening here. We are having a hearing with respect

          5  to some legislation to try to curb the carbon

          6  dioxide, which is one of the problems we have in the

          7  greenhouse gas to try to make sure that your

          8  children and your children's children and their

          9  children will have an earth that is safe and where

         10  the effects of the greenhouse effect won't take

         11  place, so that's what we're doing here today. And

         12  this is our little bit, we think the federal

         13  government should be doing more and we think the

         14  state should be doing more, but we're doing what we

         15  can under the Speaker's leadership, we're trying to,

         16  you've heard the expression, it's called "save the

         17  earth." Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Commissioner. You're on.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman. Good morning, and I am Commissioner Joel

         21  A. Miele, Sr., Professional Engineer, of the New

         22  York City Department of Environmental Protection.

         23                 With me at the table from the agency

         24  are Robert Avaltroni, to my immediate left, Deputy

         25  Commissioner of the Bureau of Environmental
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          2  Compliance, and to my far left, Charles G. Sturcken,

          3  Chief of Staff and Special Counsel. Also with us

          4  this morning is Richard Miller, Senior Vice

          5  President for Energy at the New York City Economic

          6  Development Corporation, on my right.

          7                 We thank you for the opportunity to

          8  testify on an amended version of Intro. 803. The

          9  Administration is eager to collaborate with the

         10  Council, with New York State, and the other states

         11  in the region, on how best to maintain or improve

         12  the environmental performance of power generators in

         13  the deregulator and energy market in which we now

         14  operate.

         15                 In today's energy market where demand

         16  is very high and permanent new supplies are two to

         17  four years away, we expect the older, more polluting

         18  plants, will continue to operate. Even after the

         19  newer plants are permitted and on line, some of the

         20  owners of the older power plants may not have the

         21  incentive to upgrade their plants, if increased

         22  demand means that the older plants will still be

         23  needed.

         24                 If you recall the impact of all the

         25  highly polluting power plants up wind of New York
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          2  City, which were grandfathered under provisions of

          3  the clean air act, you will realize the importance

          4  of encouraging the generation of electricity via

          5  modern clean equipment.

          6                 Utilities already have some economic

          7  incentive to upgrade older equipment because it

          8  tends to be less fuel efficient and therefore

          9  produces power at a higher cost than the more

         10  efficient equipment.

         11                 The premise of Intro. 803-A is that

         12  by adding a municipal carbon dioxide tax or penalty

         13  for the cost of operating relatively less efficient

         14  generating equipment, the City can encourage

         15  generators to upgrade their facilities more quickly

         16  so that they will produce less carbon dioxide, as

         17  well as less of the other pollutants associated with

         18  fossil fuel combustion.

         19                 The Administration would support the

         20  concept of creating some type of mission performance

         21  standard or other disincentive to discourage the

         22  generation of electricity at plants that are

         23  relatively less fuel efficient, provided that a

         24  thorough environmental impact analysis establishes

         25  that such a standard or disincentive will reduce
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          2  emissions, improve air quality and maintain

          3  reliability.

          4                 While that analysis is underway,

          5  active consideration of this legislation sends a

          6  message to our colleagues in the legislative and

          7  executive branches of New York State government.

          8                 The message is that New York City

          9  wants to work with New York State and other state

         10  governments in the northeast, to put in place a

         11  regional system of emissions-based performance

         12  standards to reduce the adverse public health and

         13  environmental impacts of electricity generation in a

         14  cost effective way.

         15                 In the absence of a new state or

         16  regional mechanism for controlling powerplant

         17  emissions, it's unlikely that even a municipality as

         18  large as New York City can ensure that

         19  competitiveness and energy markets does not bring

         20  air quality degradation.

         21                 Preventing that degradation is a goal

         22  the Administration shares with the sponsors.

         23                 Many present today probably know that

         24  a week ago the commonwealth of Massachusetts issued

         25  a final regulation capping the emission of four
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          2  pollutants from power plants: Mercury, nitrogen

          3  oxides, sulfur dioxide and carbon dioxide. The first

          4  three of these pollutants are "criteria" pollutants

          5  which local governments are generally prohibited

          6  from regulating, but which are of concern because of

          7  their threat to public health. This is the type of

          8  proposal that local governments throughout the

          9  Northeast are looking to their state governments to

         10  pursue. It is the hope of this Administration that

         11  consideration of Intro. 803-A will encourage New

         12  York State to work with the City and other states on

         13  regional improvements and emissions from electricity

         14  generation.

         15                 I note that the state through the New

         16  York State Energy and Research Development Authority

         17  has recently decided to spend $4.6 million to

         18  monitor and analyze environmental impacts associated

         19  with larger central station electric generation and

         20  with distributed generation. Among the impacts

         21  expected to be analyzed are the emission of nitrogen

         22  oxides, sulfur oxides, mercury and fine

         23  particulates, the deposition of acid rain and ozone

         24  depletion.

         25                 Before closing, I want to mention one
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          2  drafting matter. The definitions of "equivalent

          3  megawatt hour" and "net useful thermal energy

          4  output" indicate that the legislation is intended to

          5  apply to steam-electric generating facilities.

          6                 However, the proposed Section

          7  24-141.1(d) of the legislation provides that its

          8  requirements do not apply to electric generating

          9  units subject to the jurisdiction of the Public

         10  Service Commission.

         11                 Since the two categories overlap to

         12  some extent, drafting changes may be required to

         13  clarify the bill's intent.

         14                 We thank you for this opportunity to

         15  provide input.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My understanding

         17  is that it does not apply to steam, the

         18  co-generation with steam and electricity it doesn't

         19  apply.

         20                 Mr. Speaker, do you have a question?

         21                 SPEAKER VALLONE: No, I wanted to

         22  repeat that. I believe that that's been corrected

         23  and I'm very pleased to hear that testimony because

         24  I think we are both on the same page now, and it

         25  will be interesting to see what other testimony

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  there may be concerning it.

          3                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe I

          5  misunderstood you, but you did mention the problem

          6  with air quality, but I don't know if you mentioned

          7  anything about the greenhouse effect? What's your

          8  position on it?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, I didn't. But

         10  obviously there's an impact by the emissions of

         11  certain of these particulates and certain of these

         12  materials on the greenhouse gases, and obviously

         13  there is an impact there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Carbon dioxide

         15  is the leading greenhouse, together with methane.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Major components,

         17  yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         19                 And I agree with you that we do have

         20  to study the effects of legislation on this to make

         21  sure that it does do what we hope it does. Has the

         22  City undertaken any of these studies?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: From time to time

         24  we have undertaken studies. We have no current

         25  studies that I'm aware of at this point in time
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          2  being done by our agency.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there

          4  something that you would contemplate doing together

          5  with the Council, or individuals?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Obviously we

          7  would be prepared to look at it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is something

          9  that you believe is necessary, don't you?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, again, the

         11  issue is whether the appropriate governmental body

         12  is the municipal body or should it be the state or

         13  the federal government.

         14                 We've had some assistance from EPA

         15  obviously in looking at air conditions over the New

         16  York City area, but we obviously are not insulated

         17  from the rest of the area around us, and

         18  consequently, it really needs to be some sort of a

         19  joint effort, we think, if it's going to mean

         20  anything.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's right,

         22  you do need a joint effort. And has there been any

         23  reaching out to other municipalities or other states

         24  in order to do a joint study?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Good
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          2  morning, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We can study all

          4  we want about the quality of the air over the City

          5  of New York, but the question is where these

          6  problems are emitting from, the midwest, we've heard

          7  problems on that. We don't live in a vacuum,

          8  obviously, we don't live isolated, and I'm just

          9  wondering what you think we can do. You're our

         10  experts and we have to rely on you to give us the

         11  direction to go in order to be able to study these,

         12  and then when we have to study, then we should be

         13  looking at legislation.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Mr.

         15  Chairman, good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning,

         17  Bob.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Bob

         19  Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner.

         20                 We have a dialogue constantly going

         21  on with obviously members in the region, including

         22  the State of Massachusetts. I think as the

         23  Commissioner alluded to before, it's imperative that

         24  we get the state involved in this process because

         25  obviously state DEC and on a regulatory basis the
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          2  Public Service Commission, plays a very prominent

          3  role in regulating the utility industry.

          4                 So, obviously, we have a dialogue

          5  that is in place. We obviously would expand that

          6  dialogue and we would be willing to work with

          7  Council staff as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I noted in your

          9  statement, Commissioner, that you talked about the

         10  Administration would support the concept of creating

         11  some type of emission performance standard or other

         12  disincentive to discourage the production of

         13  electricity at plants, relatively less fuel

         14  efficient; would you like to list, tell us, list the

         15  other disincentives that you're talking about?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I think what

         17  we're talking about there is we need to analyze the

         18  entire thing. We haven't gone into even the depth

         19  that I think would look at both the breadth and the

         20  depth of what we're dealing with here.

         21                 Obviously what we're looking for is

         22  disincentives.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Correct.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: There may be

         25  other types of disincentives, aside from the ones
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          2  that are outlined in this particular bill.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We're talking

          4  about a tax or a penalty. Obviously by saying you

          5  don't think the provisions in the bill are

          6  sufficient as a disincentive.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, I think what

          8  we are saying is that certainly they are

          9  disincentives. They may not be the best ones.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, that's what

         11  I'm talking about.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The answer is I

         13  think that jointly we should continue to look to see

         14  if there is anything else that we should be adding

         15  to it, or even after this bill is enacted, if that's

         16  what occurs with it, obviously the bill can be

         17  amended after it becomes the law.

         18                 So, we will look more deeply at other

         19  tools, I guess would be the best way to describe it,

         20  that we can use to provide as disincentives.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For so many

         22  years this Council has been the leadership in

         23  different types of legislation, whether it be social

         24  legislation, legislation say, for instance, on the

         25  use of tobacco in public places and other things
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          2  like that, and sometimes we have problems with our

          3  jurisdiction of preemption. There is some sort of an

          4  obligation on this City which we believe has the

          5  most advanced thinking and progressive thinking in

          6  the United States to take the lead, even in things

          7  that we perhaps cannot legislate. And I think it's

          8  an obligation upon our lead agency, which is your

          9  agency, even though it may not have jurisdiction

         10  over electricity, which it did in the past, I

         11  remember when it had a different name, your agency,

         12  which did include the jurisdiction over electricity,

         13  and I'm very glad to see that you have no problem

         14  with being the lead agency on this issue. Because I

         15  don't know of any other agency that would be a lead

         16  agency.

         17                 But I think it's important on all of

         18  us, in the limited time we may have left, at least

         19  to start to show that we understand the problem,

         20  we're trying to reach for a solution to the problem,

         21  and that we should take the leadership of the United

         22  States, as we've done so many times in the past. I

         23  wonder if you agree with me on that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I agree with you

         25  wholly. I think this Administration has indicated
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          2  one of the things that this City has the capability

          3  to do, is to be the leader because of its size and

          4  because of its capability in any area that municipal

          5  government or environmental interests arise, and,

          6  quite, frankly, I think that in the last seven years

          7  we've shown that leadership is something that we've

          8  been willing to display, and we're very clear on the

          9  fact that we want to be out in the vanguard, not in

         10  the train, when we move forward on any issue.

         11                 This is a particularly important one,

         12  and certainly it's an issue that is clearly in the

         13  area of responsibility of our agency.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We're looking

         15  for a balanced approach, economically, but we also

         16  have to consider the environmental aspects of it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We don't want to

         18  derail the economy, but at the same time we want to

         19  nudge the system towards the right way to go, and I

         20  think this is an approach to doing that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But we do also

         22  realize, of course, that what's happening in the

         23  greenhouse effect, and I think most of us are now

         24  buying into it, where many people laughed at it in

         25  the past, because we're seeing the results. I,
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          2  myself, was up very close to the North Pole last

          3  summer, and I can see some of the effects as was

          4  pointed out to me of the fact that we now find the

          5  ice in the North Pole is melting, that if that's the

          6  case, then there is a great threat to humanity and a

          7  great threat to the spaceship earth, as they call

          8  it. So that we have really an obligation on our part

          9  to do what we can for future generations. We just

         10  can't say, you know, look, economy is going to be

         11  affected by this. The economy is important, but the

         12  future of this earth is more important. I think

         13  that's an approach we have to take.

         14                 Council Member Freed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         16                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Good morning.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I'm just

         19  looking at this, and I was wondering, of course the

         20  plant that we're struggling with in Lower Manhattan

         21  is the Con Ed plant on the Lower East Side on 14th

         22  Street, and I'm just wondering if you think that

         23  this bill and the regulations would be effective in

         24  cutting down the emissions of the existing plant

         25  that's been in operation for 50 years.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I think very

          3  clearly, yes, there would be an impact on the plant,

          4  and it would be from our viewpoint, from the

          5  environmental viewpoint, a positive one.

          6                 Quantifiedly, I don't think I can

          7  come up with that right now, but clearly, we believe

          8  there would be an improvement that would come out of

          9  it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Great.

         11                 Because that, even though they're

         12  doubling their plant capacity and the new plant will

         13  probably be much lower pollution, the existing plant

         14  has been spewing out pollution for 50 years and the

         15  entire neighborhood has been suffering from it.

         16                 So, that was really my question. How

         17  long do you think it would be, I'm not really

         18  looking at the time in this bill, that you would be

         19  able to get the regulations up and running? Do you

         20  think you can comply with the bill?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, obviously,

         22  if we're called upon to do so, we will comply with

         23  the bill. The issue, of course, is there are some

         24  studies that need to be done once the bill is

         25  passed, there is some money that needs to be spent,
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          2  and then we need to be able to come back and decide

          3  and make a rule-making through CAPA that will

          4  determine what effectively we're going to be calling

          5  for, and what the impact will be on each one of the

          6  individual plants within our jurisdiction.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And do you feel

          8  that this bill would have any -- I guess the

          9  question is, what sort of effect do you think this

         10  bill would have on the ten or 11 mini generators

         11  that have been proposed?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         13  Council Member Freed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Hi.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Bob

         16  Avaltroni again.

         17                 They are below. But just to go back

         18  to your other point as well, no one should lose

         19  sight of the fact that we need a partnership with

         20  regard to the state, as I said before. The state is

         21  an important player that this Council has to bring

         22  to the table as well, and we will work with them and

         23  they should be willing, I'm sure, to assist us,

         24  because we do have overlapping responsibilities in

         25  some areas, and as I said, with their jurisdiction
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          2  over the public utilities, with the Public Service

          3  Commission, they become a vital player in this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I just want to

          7  make it very clear, that before we pass legislation,

          8  it is our intention that there be a full EIS on

          9  this, and we, of course, will ask for your

         10  cooperation, which I know is forthcoming.

         11                 Council Member Carrion.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         15                 This Council will continue to provide

         16  leadership, you know, in terms of the environment

         17  and in cleaning things up and being more efficient.

         18  I think that's obviously what the intent of this is,

         19  and we understand that you are committed to that as

         20  well.

         21                 And there's only so much we can do

         22  locally, and I hear your point and I think the point

         23  has been made.

         24                 My question has to do with sort of

         25  the larger circle that we're operating in, and what
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          2  are the entities that we participate with, if there

          3  is Atlantic State Association or a Northeast Region

          4  Association of States that's having this

          5  conversation, and what role do you play in that

          6  conservation?

          7                 Because it seems, you know, we're

          8  here at home in this little corner of the state, of

          9  course it's the center of the universe according to

         10  us, but we're surrounded by Connecticut,

         11  Massachusetts, the rest of New York State,

         12  Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, et cetera, et

         13  cetera, and if we do something and the region

         14  doesn't do something in the same direction, we're

         15  just blowing in the wind, as they say.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         17  Council Member, Bob Avaltroni again.

         18                 We do have that opportunity to work

         19  with NESCAUM, which is a regulatory group in the

         20  area.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: What's the

         22  acronym?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         24  NESCAUM, N-E-S-C-A-U-M, the NorthEast States for

         25  Coordinated Air Use Management. We participate with
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          2  members from different states sharing ideas, sharing

          3  concepts, as you said before, and as I've

          4  articulated here this morning, we cannot operate

          5  alone and it's very important that we have a

          6  partner.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Are there

          8  other municipalities, and are there other states

          9  that have a mirror bill of 803, 803-A?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Not that I'm

         11  aware of.

         12                 I mean, clearly, the City of New York

         13  is the only municipality I think in the Northeast

         14  other than maybe Boston that of itself would have

         15  any significant impact on what they're dealing with.

         16                 And as you said earlier before, it

         17  depends upon which way the wind is blowing, and,

         18  clearly, whatever we clean up here will be blowing

         19  eastward, and whatever we end up landing on top of

         20  New York City coming from the westward, the

         21  prevailing winds being what they are, so whatever we

         22  clean up we'll have a benefit downwind, but won't

         23  have much of an effect on us directly as a result of

         24  the winds.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Let me just
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          2  clarify -- I'm sorry, go ahead.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Go ahead.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Just clarify

          5  for the record my question and your response because

          6  there were some people who maybe didn't hear it.

          7                 My question was, are there other

          8  municipalities and states in our region that have a

          9  similar bill, sort of a mirror of 803, 803-A, and

         10  your response was not that you know of?

         11                 And my understanding from the staff

         12  is that, there was a bill introduced in

         13  Massachusetts, I don't know if it was the City of

         14  Boston or if it was the state legislature, but that

         15  is somewhat similar to this.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The State of

         17  Massachusetts did pass such legislation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's what we

         20  talked about a little earlier.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Earlier,

         22  okay.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: But to my

         24  knowledge, that's the only group, and since I knew

         25  that had been passed, had I mentioned that in my own
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          2  comments, very clearly that's one approach to take.

          3                 And the fact that the State took it,

          4  one would hope would encourage the other states in

          5  the Northeast United States to look at it on a

          6  statewide basis, and we think that's the way it

          7  needs to be done, because it needs to be done at

          8  least regionally, if not nationally.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Now, in terms

         10  of the role of the federal government, I know that

         11  we have air quality standards that are set

         12  nationally and we do these, you know, disincentives

         13  on industry or incentives, depending on how you look

         14  at them.

         15                 I guess it would be appropriate for

         16  us to, for the congressional delegations of all

         17  these states to be having a conversation with

         18  NESCAUM as well, and what can we do?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, I think

         20  clearly there's a movement afoot expressed by the

         21  Massachusetts bill, law now, that basically

         22  indicates that people have reached a point where

         23  they want something done on a national basis.

         24                 I think there's been some

         25  disappointment at the national government for not
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          2  coming out with something that would solve and

          3  establish a standard across the country. I think

          4  it's going to create a bigger problem for us,

          5  because if we establish a standard, and

          6  Massachusetts establishes a standard and then the

          7  federal government comes out with a third standard,

          8  then we're going to have to back and fill until we

          9  match it all together and it makes it much more

         10  difficult to do.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So we need

         12  national leadership on this.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And the

         15  Chairman indicated in his opening remarks that it

         16  looks pretty bleak, you know, in that regard.

         17                 Thank you, Commissioner, and thank

         18  you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         20                 And the thing that we really have a

         21  real problem with, Mr. Commissioner, and that is the

         22  issue of the timing in this; is time of the essence?

         23  How soon -- does anybody really know? Time Magazine

         24  had an article last year, I remember a full article

         25  on the state of the earth and the earth warming
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          2  effect, the greenhouse effect, and if you read it,

          3  you get very apprehensive about what is happening,

          4  but what do you believe as far as our timing, and

          5  how fast should we be doing this and passing this

          6  legislation, and limiting the greenhouse gases or

          7  the gases which affect the ozone --

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: My personal

          9  feeling is that we probably don't have enough

         10  information yet to make a really definitive decision

         11  as to what the impact. There certainly is an impact,

         12  the question is what impact does it have? Is it a

         13  significant impact, an overwhelming impact, a minor

         14  impact, and I think we're still arguing over that.

         15                 For every statement of concern that's

         16  expressed indicating there is a minimal issue here,

         17  there is another opposing statement that says it's a

         18  maximal issue.

         19                 For everyone that says don't worry

         20  about it, there is something who is saying you've

         21  got to worry about it immediately.

         22                 I think, and I hate to say this,

         23  because study tends to be characterized as inaction

         24  rather than action, here is a case where I don't

         25  think we have sufficient information to be
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          2  definitive yet.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can we really

          4  wait for a definitive answer?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The answer is you

          6  have to be responsible.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: By the time we

          8  finish waiting for a definitive answer, it will be

          9  too late to do anything.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's true. But

         11  the answer is you don't just study, you study and

         12  take whatever action seems to be appropriate based

         13  on what you've studied in the past --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you don't

         15  have to wait for the final answer?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I mean, the

         17  answer is you can make correction as you go forward,

         18  as we've indicated might be necessary in this bill

         19  at some point after it becomes a law, but the fact

         20  of the matter is that shouldn't hold you from moving

         21  the bill into law, based upon what you know now, and

         22  then making whatever modifications to it as you

         23  gather more knowledge.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And, of course,

         25  you must determine the motivation of the people
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          2  doing the studies.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Everybody is

          4  motivated by something --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's right,

          6  and that's why you have to know the motivation.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: And there are

          8  many different viewpoints on these things, depending

          9  upon, you know, your viewpoint.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the public

         11  good is the basic answer. What's best for the

         12  public, what's best for the health of the citizens

         13  is the final answer.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: True, but you

         15  have to be grounded in facts and knowledge --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Of course.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Not in concerns

         18  that are not founded.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I remind you,

         20  tobacco companies to this day say smoking doesn't

         21  cause cancer and emphysema. They still maintain

         22  that. So that we have to understand where we're

         23  coming from.

         24                 I'm not saying that we shouldn't be

         25  really studying it, and we do have to study, I just
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          2  want to make sure that by the time the results of

          3  the study come out, it's too late to do what the

          4  studies call for.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I can tell you

          6  that our agency, through the various bodies that we

          7  belong to that are involved in the environment,

          8  primarily obviously in the water area, pure water

          9  and wastewater, we spent an incredible amount of our

         10  budget money on funding studies that would tend to

         11  give us more knowledge so we can make a better

         12  defined decision in our future endeavors.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we haven't

         14  waited for the end of the last study, but look at

         15  the wonderful work we've been doing in our water

         16  quality and we're maintaining our water quality.

         17  We're probably one of the leading places n in the

         18  world, as far as the water quality is concerned, and

         19  that's a wonderful analogy, and that's what we

         20  should be doing for the atmosphere and for the air

         21  itself.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Mr.

         23  Chairman, obviously this Administration and this

         24  Commissioner has always been progressive, and we

         25  will not take a different approach in the future.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The devil is in

          3  the details, as we always say.

          4                 Council Member Freed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

          6                 I just wanted to clarify something, I

          7  think, Commissioner Avaltroni, when you were

          8  answering my question I asked about the impact or if

          9  there would be an impact on the mini plants, and I'm

         10  not sure, the impression I got was that they

         11  wouldn't be affected by this. They're mostly about

         12  80 megawatts, which clearly come under the auspices

         13  of the bill.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes, I

         15  believe they are under 80 megawatts, so it should

         16  not be anything that's going to impact.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The point here I

         18  think is those plants are modern plants.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: And as modern

         21  plants one would expect them to meet the criteria we

         22  would be outlining. So, we don't expect that there

         23  would be any negative impact on those plans,

         24  although obviously they would be subject to the law.

         25  But we don't think they would have to do anything to
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          2  comply with the law.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, would you

          4  think that there would be any advantage to, when you

          5  get a number of mini plants at once, treating them

          6  as an aggregate?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, the bill

          8  talks about a power plant, and if they're all on one

          9  site, the bill contemplates they would be treated as

         10  a common power plant.

         11                 But again, if each one of the

         12  individual components is a clean-burning facility,

         13  then we don't anticipate even in the aggregate there

         14  would be a problem.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         16                 Although, now you raise another

         17  question for me. Because, again, going back to the

         18  14th Street plant, if that's built right next door,

         19  is that considered the same plant site?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That I'm not sure

         21  of. We have to look at that. That's one of the

         22  issues that's in the back of my head - what is the

         23  plant, and what are the boundaries of that plant.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Obviously, if
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          2  it's operated by the same agency or the same

          3  company, then obviously we're going to look at it to

          4  see whether it should be treated as one plant or as

          5  separate plants. If it's owned and operated by two

          6  separate people, then I think we would pretty much

          7  be bound to treat each one of them individually. But

          8  we'll at that, our lawyers will look at that, and if

          9  we'll probably have judges who will look at that

         10  ultimately before --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But under this

         13  legislation, if they're the same site, we are going

         14  to look at the cumulative effect?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: If it's the same

         16  site under the same control, the answer is

         17  cumulative effect, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We don't care

         19  who owns them if they're the same site, because,

         20  corporations can do crazy things. As a lawyer, I

         21  could tell you I could have two plants side by side

         22  and I have two different corporations.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: But if it's the

         24  same effective owner, the answer is it will be

         25  treated as one plant.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Is there some

          4  way that we could -- or would you want to suggest

          5  some way to slightly change that so it's clear that

          6  each -- like in this case we've got one plant that's

          7  been a separate operating entity for 50 years, and

          8  it seems certainly contrary to the spirit of the

          9  bill to have another separate operating plant, a

         10  brand new one, be treated as, you know, the whole

         11  thing is the same site. Maybe we want to retool the

         12  language.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We will continue

         14  to look with Council staff at the issue. But, again,

         15  we're clearly concerned about what should be

         16  considered a site.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I think we've got

         19  a general impression of how we should treat this,

         20  and I think the bill is treating it, whether it

         21  needs to be tweaked or not we'll talk about.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We're

         24  contemplating that in definitions. So, that's

         25  important.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, again, as

          3  has been pointed out by Councilwoman Freed, the

          4  issue is what is a plant? If you've got a 40-acre

          5  site and half of the 40-acre site is owned by

          6  utility A and the other half is owned by utility B,

          7  are those two plants or is it one plant?

          8                 If they were owned by the same

          9  company and then were sold into two different ones,

         10  should we treat it as one plant or should we treat

         11  it as two plants?

         12                 If they put a plant on the site, in

         13  addition to the one that's there now, is that a

         14  second plant, or does it become a larger single

         15  plant? So we have to look at all of those issues.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's why this

         17  is legislation in progress.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes. That's why

         19  we'll work with you on this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We want to make

         21  sure there are no escape clauses in here, and if we

         22  do something, everybody knows what we have here. So,

         23  that's very good.

         24                 We're joined also by Council Member

         25  Marshall, and Council Member Rodriguez and Council
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          2  Member Marshall has a question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Relating, of

          4  course, to the Long Island City area where we have

          5  generating for the City of New York at least 50 to

          6  60 percent of its power, and of course, it is next

          7  to a low, moderate-income housing development, but

          8  specifically the KeySpan proposal, which I sat in

          9  and listened very attentively to the program that

         10  they held in Jacob Center, which is in the middle of

         11  Queensbridge Houses.

         12                 Now, they intend to put in additional

         13  units, with no plan to remove the old unit.

         14                 The had received, the Public Service

         15  Commissioner was there, and my concern was, I asked

         16  them were they going to replace the old units and

         17  they said no. So, how does it help us, and what kind

         18  of control and governing and monitoring body are we

         19  that we allow them to come and do that? The right

         20  thing to do here would be to submit a plan that

         21  shows that phasing out, as you bring in new ones to

         22  get rid of the old ones. That is not evident here,

         23  and I'm very concerned, and they're getting approval

         24  to do this.

         25                 Where do you come in, Commissioner?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, I don't

          3  know where we come in. We'll have to take a look at

          4  that, and, again, that will be part of what we do as

          5  we deal.

          6                 However, I think you've got to look

          7  at this: If you've got X kilowatt hours capacity in

          8  the City and you need X plus Y, then if they add Y,

          9  you can't expect them to take part of X down,

         10  because you haven't reached the needed capacity yet.

         11                 So, you have to look at it --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I'm not

         13  following you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Clearly, if you

         15  have enough capacity in the City now, and for every

         16  kilowatt you add, you should be taking an old,

         17  inefficient plant off line.

         18                 But if you don't have enough kilowatt

         19  hours today in the City of New York, then first you

         20  have to add modern equipment, and then once you get

         21  to the full capacity, after that, as you put a

         22  kilowatt on, you should be taking a kilowatt off.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, that's

         24  exactly what I'm saying. But that's not the plan

         25  that's being submitted.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, except,

          3  there hasn't been an issue here raised of whether

          4  there is adequate capacity in the City yet, and I'm

          5  not aware of whether they determine there is

          6  adequate capacity or there isn't. It's my

          7  understanding that we are shy some capacity.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, we

          9  also have some disputes on that.

         10                 But my point is exactly what you're

         11  describing. I'm saying to you the plan that should

         12  have been submitted would be a plan that would

         13  eventually phase out the old unit.

         14                 I'm not asking them to stop the old

         15  units now, I'm asking them to plan a phase in that

         16  will give us additional -- that will get ride of the

         17  old plants. We know that they're not clean, we know

         18  they're pumping carbon dioxide and everything else

         19  into the air, and I had to sit and listen to three

         20  different mothers say that they never had asthma and

         21  neither did their children, they have now developed

         22  asthma.

         23                 We have to have a responsibility

         24  here.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:
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          2  Councilwoman Marshall, this is an area again, as I

          3  alluded to before you came in, where we need the

          4  state's intervention. This is an Article 10

          5  facility, the state has jurisdiction.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We,

          8  again, need some help here. As we alluded to before,

          9  we clearly support the concept, the Administration

         10  and the sponsor are on the same pages with regard to

         11  that. We do need help.

         12                 We would ask you, obviously, to call

         13  the appropriate members that can be of assistance to

         14  us. It does not rely totally on a City effort, we

         15  need the state's participation as well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, how

         17  can you help us here?

         18                 Do you work with the state on this at

         19  all?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We do

         21  certainly speak with the State. Obviously it would

         22  greatly help us, this as being introduced by the

         23  Council, that they bring the state in with us as

         24  part of this effort.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,

          3  Council Member Marshall.

          4                 Perhaps you would like to introduce

          5  your class from your district?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Are they

          7  here?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Not a class,

          9  your leadership group.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay.

         11                 This is PS 149, I believe? Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Newly elected.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The newly

         14  elected student Council of PS 149. I have visited

         15  that school many times. The computer money that we

         16  placed in the school is solely utilized by the

         17  school. They also have an innovative project in this

         18  school where the children are being introduced to

         19  entrepreneurship, and so I salute you to that, and I

         20  see hands being raised. Welcome to City Hall. We're

         21  glad to see you children, and I hope you enjoy your

         22  entire day, and congratulations to you as being

         23  elected as the new leadership of this school. Okay,

         24  see you in Queens, in Jackson Heights. Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  if I might, the students of 149 are very lucky

          3  because they get two Council members for the price

          4  of one. Council Member Marshall is their

          5  representative in the Council, I am the democratic

          6  leader for the area of PS 149 and every year we

          7  invite all the schools in Jackson Heights to come

          8  down and we're happy to have them down today. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's Council

         11  Member Sabini, also District Leader Sabini.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We're a

         13  team.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

         15                 Welcome. And we're glad to have you

         16  here, and I hope you're enjoying yourselves and

         17  understand what we're doing.

         18                 Is there any other questions from any

         19  other members?

         20                 Thank you very much. I appreciate it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: It's a pleasure

         22  to be here to work with the Council, as usual.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         24                 The next witness is Ashok Gupta.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: A good man.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who is the

          3  Natural Resources Defense Council, and who has been

          4  very helpful in working on this bill.

          5                 Welcome, Ashok, I appreciate it.

          6                 MR. GUPTA: Good morning.

          7                 First of all, I wanted to thank

          8  Speaker Vallone. He's shown great leadership on this

          9  issue, and certainly Chairman Michels, and the

         10  members of the Committee for having this second

         11  hearing. This is a very important piece of

         12  legislation and I'm here to testify in support of

         13  803-A, and wanted to just provide some background

         14  and highlight some of the changes and some of the

         15  issues you'll probably hear about later today.

         16                 In terms of the energy needs of the

         17  City, I think we all agree that reliability and

         18  meeting the energy needs are very, very, very

         19  important and this bill will work in harmony with

         20  the building of new plants, cleaning up of old

         21  plants, more energy efficiency and, therefore, helps

         22  meet the City need and does not in any way

         23  contradict the need for more power done correctly.

         24                 It also works in harmony with more a

         25  competitive environment. We are introducing
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          2  competition in the electric industry and this bill

          3  bill works in harmony with a more competitive

          4  environment, basically allowing and requiring new

          5  plants to be built, not requiring, but allowing new

          6  plants to be built and old plants to be cleaned up

          7  as new plants get built.

          8                 And the third piece is that it

          9  basically makes sure that the environment is

         10  protected as new plants get built, by requiring old

         11  plants to clean up, and also it provides leadership

         12  on the national level on a very important pollutant,

         13  carbon dioxide emission.

         14                 So, it is very important in terms of

         15  reliability, price and environment and this bill be

         16  passed.

         17                 The bill does regulate carbon dioxide

         18  emissions. It does not regulate the other

         19  pollutants, nitric oxide, particulates, but does

         20  have an indirect effect on those pollutants by

         21  regulating carbon dioxide, other pollutants should

         22  also decline.

         23                 This is not done in isolation, as

         24  some of the questions reminded us. This issue of

         25  carbon dioxide emissions is being dealt with
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          2  globally, nationally, in different states, in

          3  different localities, but I think what the City

          4  Council is doing by embracing this bill is providing

          5  leadership to this very, very important issue, and

          6  we thank the Council for doing that.

          7                 The bill will buy -- what the bill

          8  does in effect is guarantee what everybody has been

          9  saying. What everybody is saying is, as new

         10  powerplants are built, old powerplants will run

         11  less, and therefore we will have less pollution.

         12                 What this bill does is in effect

         13  require that. It guarantees that. It shifts the risk

         14  of it not happening in a competitive environment and

         15  says to the power generators that you must clean up

         16  your old plants as we move forward.

         17                 So, the argument of displacement,

         18  which we hear about a lot in terms of powerplants,

         19  that let new powerplants get built, older

         20  powerplants will shut down or clean up because of

         21  competition, this bill is in effect saying we will

         22  require that to happen, we are going to require what

         23  you say the marketplace is in effect going to do,

         24  and if the marketplace is going to result in lower

         25  prices and a cleaner environment, this bill does the
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          2  exact same thing because all this bill does is make

          3  sure that what is supposed to happen in the

          4  marketplace does in effect happen.

          5                 The bill is also quite flexible in

          6  its approach, in terms of how it's implemented. It

          7  allows trading, it allows companies to invest in

          8  energy efficiency, it certainly allows them to clean

          9  up their old plants, as a way to comply, and,

         10  therefore, again, which is something that the

         11  competitive market is going to force them to do

         12  anyway in order to continue to sell their power.

         13                 So, there are multiple paths to

         14  compliance and the bill is quite flexible in

         15  allowing that to happen.

         16                 The bill does not stop new

         17  powerplants from getting built. It makes old

         18  powerplants clean up. It does not regulate all of

         19  the pollutants. It regulates one pollutant and other

         20  pollutants will come down because pollutants are

         21  affected by, you know, if you reduce C02 emissions,

         22  your nitrogen and particulate and other pollutants

         23  are going to go down also. It doesn't raise costs

         24  for electricity. It basically allows more efficient

         25  plants to get built, and basically takes out the
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          2  more inefficient dirtier plants from the mix. Some

          3  powerplants, you know, owners may win and others may

          4  lose, but that would happen with competition anyway.

          5  So, what you'll hear about are some people

          6  complaining about how their plants may become more

          7  expensive, but that's what competition would do to

          8  them anyway. It's not what the bill does, it's what

          9  competition would do.

         10                 The changes that were made in

         11  response to the comments from various players last

         12  time, I just wanted to quickly go through them. The

         13  basline has been changed from just one year '99 to a

         14  three-year average, '97, '98, '99, as a way to make

         15  sure that the baseline wasn't set at a level that

         16  was too low, and, therefore, take reductions from

         17  that low baseline. So, we've allowed the baseline to

         18  be slightly higher by coming up with a three-year

         19  average.

         20                 The other thing that the bill does

         21  was reduce the target from 30 percent to 20 percent,

         22  and also it's another way to lower the overall

         23  impact of the bill in terms of the concerns that

         24  some had raised.

         25                 It also reduces the penalty from
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          2  $3.00, and $1.00 add on that the previous bill -- I

          3  mean, the previous bill had $5.00 and $5.00 and this

          4  amended bill has $3.00 and $1.00.  So, again, it has

          5  reduced the overall cost that some had complained

          6  about. And I think with those changes we had made

          7  the bill responsive and to the concern that others

          8  had raised, and, therefore, is something that we

          9  think, you know, even with these changes we think

         10  it's a strong and important bill and should be

         11  supported.

         12                 One last thing, on the question of

         13  small turbins and how we get to the -- you know, who

         14  the bill impacts. The bill does now meet, the bill

         15  applies to powerplants and turbins and small units

         16  which in aggregate should be included in the bill.

         17  Previous version, we did not have it drafted

         18  correctly, in terms of the, you know, the fact that

         19  small units would be exempted from it. Now small

         20  units are included and aggregation of those units is

         21  something we now in this bill think it's a stronger

         22  bill because of that. There would be no reason why

         23  you would take 20 small units of 15 megawatts each

         24  and say they can't be included, and say that a unit

         25  of 30 megawatts should be included. So, this bill is
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          2  equitable in that way in terms of allowing that to

          3  happen.

          4                 Climate change, again, is a very,

          5  very important issue. The City Council's leadership

          6  on this is critical. It will have important benefits

          7  by reducing other pollutants and improving the

          8  health of communities. It will help neighborhoods in

          9  terms of the total number of powerplants that the

         10  City will need, and it will lower the cost of

         11  electricity in the City, so whether from an economic

         12  basis, health basis, equity basis or reliability

         13  basis, this bill is helpful in meeting the City's

         14  energy needs.

         15                 I appreciate the opportunity to be

         16  here today, and happy to answer any of your

         17  questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I want to get a

         19  couple of things straight, because you are an expert

         20  on this; and that is, we're dealing with emissions

         21  which have actually a three-way effect: They pollute

         22  the air around the, the particular air around the

         23  plants themselves, which cause people who live near

         24  the plants problems, potential problems.

         25                 Also, as you stated just before,
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          2  climate changes the greenhouse effect, and that is

          3  the earthwarming problem. And then also, it affects

          4  the ozone layer, the ozone layer which is a

          5  protectant to the earth because it prevents certain

          6  rays from going through, actually prevents cancer,

          7  the ozone layer; am I correct, or are there other

          8  things you want to add to that?

          9                 MR. GUTPA: The last is generally, the

         10  last issue in terms of the ozone layer, it doesn't

         11  really effect. What we're really talking about, the

         12  major pollutants here are nitrogen oxide emissions

         13  that contribute to the ozone problem, which is a

         14  health-based issue in terms of respiratory illnesses

         15  that are caused by the ozone, the particulates, fine

         16  particle issue; and then there is the C02 issue for

         17  the City primarily. And, of course, where people are

         18  burning a lot of coal, there is a sulfur dioxide

         19  issue as well.

         20                 So, the four major pollutants we talk

         21  about with powerplants are, nitrogen oxide emissions

         22  that cause the ozone problem; the sulfur dioxide

         23  emissions that cause acid rain; mercury, that we all

         24  know about, and C02 emissions that cause climate

         25  change are the four pollutants that Massachusetts
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          2  just regulated. So, those are the primary pollutants

          3  associated with powerplants.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they all

          5  affect various problems that we have.

          6                 MR. GUPTA: Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Namely, the acid

          8  rain problem, the climate change.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: The only issue is one of

         10  ozone -- there are two issues of ozone, one is ozone

         11  pollution, the other is the ozone layer and the

         12  ozone layer is associated with chlorofluorocarbons

         13  that cause cancer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the earth

         15  warming effect from the greenhouses, which is

         16  primarily carbon dioxide, and methane.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, right. Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, let me ask

         19  you something. The generators we're talking about,

         20  are generators that use fossil fuels; namely, oil

         21  and natural gas, which is also a problem, and most

         22  people don't realize it, natural gas is also a

         23  fossil fuel. But fossil fuel is less dangerous than

         24  oil emissions, that are destructive emissions than

         25  the ones we talked about. And how much less, if
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          2  there is some way of judging that, is the emissions

          3  from a natural gas more or less dangerous than

          4  fossil fuel of oil?

          5                 MR. GUPTA: Let me clarify. When we

          6  talk about fossil fuel, we're talking about coal,

          7  oil and natural gas.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We don't even

          9  talk about coal anymore.

         10                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, coal --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: People from West

         12  Virginia are very concerned that we don't use coal

         13  anymore.

         14                 MR. GUPTA: Right. But it still

         15  affects us because we get the emissions coming from

         16  the midwest in terms of health impacts, and, of

         17  course, it contributes with global climate change,

         18  which we're all impacted by. So, we shouldn't ignore

         19  the importance of coal, but you have --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, coal is

         21  probably the worst of all of the fossil fuels.

         22                 MR. GUPTA: Exactly. We don't burn it

         23  in the City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And bituminous

         25  coal is the worst of the two types of coal.
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          2                 MR. GUPTA: So, coal, oil, and natural

          3  gas, in order in terms of how bad they are for a

          4  climate change, and generally in terms of public

          5  health, and coal we don't burn in powerplants in the

          6  City, oil and gas we do. Natural gas is, of course,

          7  much, much cleaner than oil, and therefore, most of

          8  the new plants that are being built are natural gas

          9  plants with back-up oil.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which is

         11  cheaper, natural of course depending on the market

         12  or the date, natural gas or oil?

         13                 MR. GUPTA: It fluctuates.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we do

         15  realize the fact that the economics plays a very

         16  large part here, as to what they're going to use.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: It fluctuates.

         18                 Right now people are generally

         19  burning oil because it's cheaper than natural gas,

         20  but, you know, natural gas had been cheaper during

         21  '97, '98, '99.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Unless there are

         23  incentives, unless we make incentives to use natural

         24  gas as opposed to oil. Are there different grades of

         25  oil, too? Some oil is more dangerous than other
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          2  grades of oil?

          3                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

          4                 So, I think this bill will marginally

          5  put more pressure on the companies to burn a little

          6  more natural gas than they would otherwise want to,

          7  left to just market forces, and, therefore, will

          8  result in a cleaner environment, because it does say

          9  to the companies, you know, you may have to burn

         10  natural gas, even if you think you might want to

         11  burn oil.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, the approach

         13  we're taking here is to try to encourage the owners

         14  of the generators or electricity to use the cleaner

         15  fuel?

         16                 MR. GUPTA: On the margins it will

         17  cause that to happen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you think we

         19  have sufficient incentives to do that?

         20                 MR. GUPTA: Again, the bill can't

         21  accomplish everything. It's one more step. It's one

         22  additional bit of pressure that will cause people to

         23  burn a little more natural gas rather than oil in

         24  the City as a way to reduce the emissions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then the
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          2  natural question that follows in this, do we have

          3  sufficient time? Is time of the essence? How much

          4  time do we have? What is your opinion? I know we

          5  don't have a definitive study that we need to make

          6  all these determinations, but we have to act now or

          7  we are probably playing catch-up right now, aren't

          8  we?

          9                 MR. GUPTA: The question of how soon

         10  should we act on climate change is one of, the

         11  sooner we act, the easier it is going to be for us

         12  to be able to cope with the changes in terms of the

         13  economic cost.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we're

         15  not going to be able to eliminate the climate change

         16  issue.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: The longer we wait, the

         18  more expensive it's going to be to deal with the

         19  climate change problem. And, again, the solution to

         20  the climate change problem is to move toward more

         21  efficient technologies, both on the powerplant side

         22  and on the demand side, and what this bill is doing

         23  is starting to encourage more efficient technologies

         24  on the supply side, as a way to lower C02 emissions

         25  and other pollutants.
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          2                 The marketplace is going to put that

          3  same pressure and this bill is also basically

          4  providing a little bit more support to the idea that

          5  cleaner plants should be built, cleaner plants will

          6  displace dirtier plants, and this will make a little

          7  bit more certain that cleaner plants will indeed

          8  displace dirtier plants by having the requirements

          9  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As far as

         11  climate change, all we really are doing, isn't it

         12  true, is delaying the inevitable, because we're

         13  never going to be able to clean up all of the

         14  pollutants that affect the climate change?

         15                 MR. GUPTA: No, absolutely not. I

         16  think it will take time to deal with the climate

         17  change problem, but it's a problem that we must

         18  solve, and the question is, the sooner we can start,

         19  the sooner we can solve the problem. I think

         20  delaying makes it harder to solve. I think the

         21  technology is there, both on the demand side and on

         22  the supply side, to significantly reduce the

         23  emissions --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I'm not

         25  suggesting that we delay anything. It's just that
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          2  we're playing catch-up and we should probably do as

          3  much as we can based on the science that we know

          4  now.

          5                 But the issue of climate changes and

          6  greenhouse effects is something that is happening

          7  and has been happening for thousands of years on

          8  this planet and the issue is are we just postponing

          9  the greenhouse effect some time in the future the

         10  more we do now? And is there any way of reversing

         11  the greenhouse effect?

         12                 MR. GUPTA: It will take a long -- it

         13  will take decades, but it can be done, in terms of

         14  climate stabilization, if we start soon and we get

         15  on the right technology path.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We can't make it

         17  any worse; is that what you're saying?

         18                 MR. GUPTA: No, it can get worse.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, if we do

         20  everything we should be doing, we're trying to stop

         21  it from getting worse? But of actually reversing the

         22  climate the issue of the greenhouse effect is

         23  something very hard to do.

         24                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, but we have to start.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I'm not
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          2  denying it. We shouldn't make it worse, the question

          3  is can we make it better, and I've heard we can make

          4  it better, and just a question of being able to

          5  delay the full effect of the greenhouse effect

          6  sometime in the future, when maybe we have the

          7  scientific means of being able to reverse the

          8  greenhouse effect.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: Well, again, the way we

         10  reduce the impacts and solve the problem is by

         11  having fewer of those pollutants that cause the

         12  problem.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, we know

         14  what we're supposed to be doing.

         15                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The question is,

         17  when should we be doing it, how quickly should we be

         18  doing it, and what does the future hold and when

         19  could we -- you say decades, I think you're being

         20  very optimistic that we can resolve this issue in

         21  decades. You're probably talking about more than a

         22  decade, you're probably talking about generations.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: Right, decades.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Decades being 10

         25  years, generations being 20 years.
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          2                 Thank you very much. Anybody have any

          3  other questions?

          4                 Helen. Council Member Marshall.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: First of

          6  all, I would like to complement our chairman,

          7  Councilman Michels, for being on the ball with this,

          8  he started way back with it, and, Ashok, you have

          9  been a real great help to the people in Long Island

         10  City. Every place I go they mention your name, and

         11  you've brought insight, you've brought expertise to

         12  the situation, which has been very, very helpful.

         13                 When you refer to climate change,

         14  which has been very, very helpful, when you refer to

         15  climate change, you know, people are going to be

         16  watching this on television, many people don't know

         17  what you're talking about. Could you just explain

         18  that a little more, and it's impact?

         19                 MR. GUPTA: Sure. Right.

         20                 Climate change impacts are

         21  significant. Again, climate change doesn't describe

         22  a problem accurately, you are talking about extreme

         23  weather, whether it will be much, much hotter or

         24  colder or melting of the ice caps, you know, more

         25  severe storms.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

          3                 MR. GUPTA: You're talking about a

          4  wide range of impacts that occur from the greenhouse

          5  effect and the release of carbon dioxide emissions

          6  and other pollutants that cause the climate change

          7  problem, which is caused primarily by the burning of

          8  fossil fuels, and it's a problem that has

          9  accumulated over the last at least 100, 150 years,

         10  especially in terms of the pollutants in the air

         11  that is causing climate change to take place, and

         12  this is something that we need to take seriously,

         13  because it will have not only impacts on the

         14  ecosystem, in terms of our sea coast and forest and

         15  national parks, but also on public health, because

         16  the change of pattern from the weather, issues

         17  related to even mosquitoes, you change everything

         18  when you change the weather, you know, and we are

         19  significantly changing the weather through the

         20  pollutants. And, so, it is a phenomena that we all

         21  know about, I think there is very little

         22  disagreement about the problem out there. The only

         23  thing people are disagreeing about is how much have

         24  we contributed to the problem, but the fact that

         25  there is a problem there is generally agreement
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          2  about, and the fact that we need to start taking

          3  action soon is -- and the good news is, we have the

          4  technology to be able to solve the problem. I mean,

          5  we can improve the efficiency of power plants, we

          6  can improve the efficiency on the demand side of our

          7  consumption that we could reduce C02 emissions, you

          8  know, 30, 40, 50 percent through the technologies

          9  that are available today, if we start doing that.

         10                 Well, I'm particularly interested

         11  with the KeySpan Project, and I know that they're

         12  going to be testifying when you're finished. And you

         13  heard my concern, is that we're still pumping out

         14  all these pollutants, even though they're putting in

         15  beautiful new plants that will work far more

         16  efficiently.

         17                 I'd like to hear you elaborate on

         18  that a little bit.

         19                 Of course I know that this bill will

         20  have an impact on that.

         21                 MR. GUPTA: Right. I think basically

         22  what we're trying to happen is all of the plants, we

         23  want to have them start cleaning up, and KeySpan is

         24  making some progress in that direction by cleaning

         25  up their older plant. They can go further, and we
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          2  want them to go further, in terms of repowering

          3  their plant, and we hope they will do that.

          4                 So, I think the, you know, their new

          5  plant is very, very clean, they're making some

          6  progress cleaning up their old plant. They need to

          7  do more. This bill will put a little more pressure

          8  on them to clean up more, and I think the community

          9  is putting more pressure on them to clean up. And I

         10  think it's a step-by-step process in terms of

         11  getting the old plants in Astoria and Long Island

         12  City cleaned up, and I think --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well,

         14  wouldn't it be better, rather than retrofit the old

         15  ones to replace them, to submit a long-range plan of

         16  replacing the old ones with new ones?

         17                 MR. GUPTA: We would urge all owners

         18  of existing plants and turbins to have a long-range

         19  strategy for cleaning them up, and market forces are

         20  going to push them in that direction, and this bill

         21  is going to push them in that direction, and the

         22  community is going to push them in that direction,

         23  in terms of saying that we don't want the older

         24  plants continuing to operate the way they have been,

         25  and it's only when those old plants clean up will
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          2  emissions significantly drop and the price of

          3  electricity will come down because, again, the new

          4  technology is what let's us burn fuel more

          5  efficiently rather than wasting it, and it's that

          6  wasted fuel that increases the cost of electricity

          7  and also increases emissions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, there

          9  is an overall question, too.

         10                 Other plants are being proposed for

         11  the area, and I'm just concerned about the total

         12  impact of all of these plants in such a small

         13  section of our City, and we understand that many

         14  times conditions, like the power plants and things

         15  that are detrimental to the environment and society

         16  are very often placed in low income, minority

         17  neighborhoods, and, so, naturally we have a concern

         18  about that. How do you feel about it? So much power

         19  generating from one little area.

         20                 MR. GUPTA: Absolutely.

         21                 And I think the solution is, again, a

         22  combination of things. We need to do a lot more on

         23  the demand side, with energy efficiency. We need to

         24  clean up the old plant, so they're using the latest

         25  and best technology.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I'm talking

          3  about spreading around.

          4                 And by the way, this is not only a

          5  low-income area, it's all of Astoria and long Island

          6  City, which at some point is rather affluent.

          7                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: So that it's

          9  a really mixed neighborhood and these people should

         10  not be subject to this. What about the rest of the

         11  City taking on some of this load?

         12                 MR. GUPTA: Absolutely. I think from a

         13  fairness perspective, especially -- I mean, the key

         14  is here getting new technology and more efficient

         15  plants, and basically, if you could reduce the

         16  overall emissions from the powerplant sector, the

         17  issue of equity and fairness will take care of

         18  itself a bit if the plants are much cleaner. People

         19  are not going to oppose as much the idea of plants

         20  coming in if they're cleaner, and, so, getting the

         21  plants to be cleaner is the most important thing.

         22  And in Northwest Queens, the overall emissions can

         23  go down significantly in the next five years if

         24  there's a right combination of new plants, old

         25  plants cleaning up and energy efficiency.
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          2                 So, what we need as a city and a

          3  state is a strategy here which says, yes, new plants

          4  only if, or only in conjunction with old plants

          5  cleaning up and more energy efficiency, and that's

          6  what this bill is trying to do. It's moving in the

          7  direction of saying, we need to do a combination of

          8  things, and the effort to block new plants is not by

          9  itself the solution, because it leaves in place the

         10  older, dirtier plants.

         11                 So, what the solution is is the

         12  combination of some new plants sited properly and

         13  fairly, a lot more energy efficiency on the demand

         14  side, and cleaning up the old plants, which is what

         15  this bill is trying to do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I'm a

         17  very proud sponsor of this bill, and thank you very

         18  much for your testimony.

         19                 MR. GUPTA: You're welcome.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         21  Rodriguez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 How are you doing, Mr. Gupta. I got a

         25  couple of questions. The more I read this bill, I
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          2  was just commenting on how good a bill it looks to

          3  be, so let's hope that it navigates its way through

          4  this body.

          5                 But I have a question with regard to

          6  the real economic impact on the operators. Because

          7  if the way we're going by building new powerplants

          8  is that the more efficient plants will be operating

          9  anyway, so that the less efficient plans probably

         10  won't operate. So, in essence, as I look at this, it

         11  sort of looks like an additional tax, that that plan

         12  probably wouldn't have operated. So, just for my

         13  information, you know, what is it going to cost for

         14  an inefficient plant to operate with these

         15  guidelines or with this legislation? How much extra

         16  would it cost them per year, per month, per kilowatt

         17  hour, so I can understand what we're talking about

         18  in terms of dollars?

         19                 MR. GUPTA: Well, let me understand

         20  the question.

         21                 You're saying that the inefficient

         22  dirtier plant isn't going to operate anyway, if it

         23  isn't, then it isn't going to cost them anything.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. But

         25  when they do operate, let's say that as a result in
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          2  an increase in demand at a certain period of time

          3  during the day in the middle of August, this plant

          4  has to go on line, I guess at that point it becomes

          5  a peaker, or whatever, and it has to go on line -- I

          6  remember reading in the newspapers last summer, I

          7  think it was last summer, where they were saying

          8  that the price per kilowatt hour during the peak

          9  demand was thousands of dollars anyway, so what's a

         10  dollar or two is what I'm asking?

         11                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I'm asking

         13  you, is it going to have an impact, a real impact?

         14                 MR. GUPTA: Right. I think, again, to

         15  answer that question, it's only on the margin. If

         16  you're looking at basically, you know, the most

         17  efficient plants are going to run first, but they're

         18  going to be the cheaper, cleaner ones, hopefully,

         19  when the new plants get built -- again, this bill

         20  impact is really when new plants are getting built,

         21  as you know.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: So, basically the question

         24  is, when will new plants start getting built, and,

         25  therefore, what will the impact be at that point,
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          2  because it really goes in effect when you have new

          3  generation that comes into play.

          4                 On the margin there will be, you

          5  know, some newer, cleaner plant will operate rather

          6  than this plant because of this bill, on the margin.

          7                 So, the question will be, on the

          8  margin, you know, how much will that cost, and how

          9  much cleaner air will we get, right?

         10                 Right, what we're impacting here --

         11  otherwise the bill would have no effect

         12  environmentally. What we're saying here on the

         13  margin, yes, we're going to pay a little bit more in

         14  order to get a cleaner environment, okay?

         15                 So, there is always going to be on

         16  the margin some trade-off, and, yes, there is going

         17  to be some. How much is that going to be? We'll do

         18  an EIS and get a more precise answer when EIS is

         19  completed, but my guess is it's going to be

         20  negligible, compared to what the competitive

         21  environment does, because in terms of the overall

         22  impact, is based on the competitive environment.

         23  Compared with what the competitive environment is

         24  going to do, the cost of this is going to be

         25  negligible, if any, and the benefits are going to be
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          2  significant.

          3                 And, so, you need to really look at

          4  not just the slight increase, you need to look at

          5  the context of overall electric bill should be

          6  coming down, and even at the peak price, if you look

          7  at what percentage of cost will be added at peak,

          8  the peak price is going to be quite high. The impact

          9  of this is going to be negligible.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That's what

         11  I thought.

         12                 Does this bill preclude or prevent

         13  the operators from passing this on to the consumers,

         14  or can they bill the consumers for this increase in

         15  cost?

         16                 MR. GUPTA: The wholesale generation

         17  price is competitive, and, therefore, this will be

         18  part of the wholesale -- it's not a regulated price.

         19  Whatever the market can bare, they may be able to

         20  pass it on or they may not, depending what the

         21  market will bare, because it's not a regulated

         22  market, when you talk about wholesale generation

         23  prices.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me ask

         25  a question with regard to peakers and how this bill

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  would work with regard to peakers. And I may not

          3  have enough information, so I will tell you what I

          4  think I understand and then you will probably

          5  correct me if I'm wrong.

          6                 So, there may be a peaker operating

          7  somewhere, and that peaker produces X amount of

          8  energy and by producing that X amount of energy,

          9  they produce Y amount of emissions for the last

         10  three years. You know, 100 tons or whatever the

         11  number is for the last three years.

         12                 So, now this year, so that's the

         13  number we're going to use as the base; is that

         14  right?

         15                 MR. GUPTA: Most companies own not

         16  just peakers, but also other power plants. They can

         17  look at the average, not just of their peakers, but

         18  all their units. Because we allow emission trading

         19  in this program, you should just look at the peakers

         20  alone. Because, yes, the peakers alone are probably

         21  their dirtiest part of their mix.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: They can average in all of

         24  their units that they own in the City, not just

         25  their peakers. So, you understand? Most of the
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          2  companies own not just peakers, but also other power

          3  plants in the City, as well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, if a

          5  company builds one very efficient powerplant --

          6                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Then they

          8  put it into the mix.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Then

         11  they're sort of excluded from this whole process;

         12  does that sound right?

         13                 MR. GUPTA: People can reduce their

         14  overall average by building something cleaner.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: One better

         16  powerplant.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: It will lower their

         18  average.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

         20  then it's an average thing, per company, per

         21  megawatt hour, or however it's done?

         22                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Now, let's

         24  say, do you know of any company that only had

         25  peakers in New York City?
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          2                 MR. GUPTA: I don't think --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: There are

          4  no companies?

          5                 MR. GUPTA: I don't think so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The

          7  question I was going to ask was, if it has to do

          8  with that peaker, and if for some reason that peaker

          9  has to operate more than normal, is that sort of

         10  unfair to that operator? The answer to that is it's

         11  irrelevant based on what you know?

         12                 MR. GUPTA: Exactly.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         14                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         15  Great bill. Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         17  Marshall has one more question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: One quick

         19  question.

         20                 Do you know how many powerplants are

         21  being proposed for that area?

         22                 MR. GUPTA: Of Northwest Queens?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         24                 MR. GUPTA: At least 2,000 megawatts.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: How many
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          2  plants does that generate?

          3                 MR. GUPTA: How many plants?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

          5                 MR. GUPTA: I mean, again, you can

          6  have plants the size of 1,000 megawatts, like the

          7  SES plant, or KeySpan's addition of 250 megawatts,

          8  Orion's repowering of 5, 600 megawatts, Power

          9  Authority's --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: An

         11  additional 200,000 megawatts?

         12                 MR. GUPTA: At least another 2,000.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: 2,000.

         14                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, basically 1,000, 500,

         15  a little over 2,000.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         19  very much. I appreciate your help.

         20                 MR. GUPTA: You're welcome.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Robert Teetz,

         22  from KeySpan.

         23                 Mr. Teetz, welcome.

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is
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          2  Robert D. Teetz, and I am Director of Environmental

          3  Engineering and Compliance at KeySpan Energy.

          4  KeySpan appreciates this second opportunity to

          5  present constructive input into the process of

          6  addressing carbon dioxide emissions in New York

          7  City.

          8                 The KeySpan family of companies

          9  includes the nation's fifth largest natural gas

         10  distribution company, serving some 2.5 million

         11  customers in New York City, Long Island and New

         12  England. KeySpan has owned and operated electric

         13  generating facilities in New York over 75 years, and

         14  presently is the owner and operator of more than

         15  6,000 megawatts of electric power generation on Long

         16  Island and in New York City, making it the largest

         17  investor-owned electric generating company in the

         18  State of New York.

         19                 In New York City, we own and operate

         20  the Ravenswood and Far Rockaway Power stations.

         21                 KeySpan also manages the electric

         22  transmission and distribution system for 1.1 million

         23  electric customers on Long Island under contract

         24  with the Long Island Power Authority.

         25                 KeySpan recognizes the threat of
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          2  global warming. We endorse the Kyoto accords and we

          3  believe that international efforts are required to

          4  stabilize carbon dioxide emissions effectively.

          5                 We strongly advocate federal

          6  legislation that would significantly reduce carbon

          7  dioxide emissions from all combustion sources. We

          8  have actually drafted legislation, which will be

          9  introduced in congress shortly, that would

         10  significantly reduce carbon dioxide from powerplants

         11  on a nationwide basis. Federal action, not

         12  well-intentioned local initiatives that will

         13  essentially tax local energy cost without measurable

         14  environmental benefit is the proper and only

         15  effective way of addressing C02 emissions and global

         16  warming.

         17                 KeySpan has already made significant

         18  progress in reducing greenhouse gases in the New

         19  York Metropolitan area and we are committed to

         20  reducing them, and other air pollutants, even

         21  further.

         22                 We have been a leader in the

         23  development of natural gas powered vehicles and fuel

         24  cells, which have already contributed cost

         25  effectively to reduced C02 emissions and improved
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          2  air quality in New York City.

          3                 KeySpan's 1,200 natural gas vehicles

          4  are the largest fleet of low-emitting vehicles in

          5  the country.

          6                 We pioneered the implementation of

          7  natural gas fueled buses in New York City.

          8                 In addition, KeySpan's existing

          9  electric generating facilities, relying on natural

         10  gas and advanced combustion controls are among the

         11  cleanest in the nation.

         12                 Since 1990, all these efforts have

         13  resulted in the reduction of more than 30 million

         14  tons of carbon dioxide that otherwise would have

         15  contributed to global warming.

         16                 KeySpan's environmental vision was

         17  instrumental in expanding the availability of

         18  natural gas in their region, through the

         19  construction of the Iroquois pipeline. This

         20  increased gas supply has displaced millions of

         21  gallons of oil and reduced C02 emissions

         22  dramatically in the metropolitan area.

         23                 In 1999, KeySpan purchased Ravenswood

         24  Generating Station from Con Edison as part of the

         25  restructuring of the electric utility industry in
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          2  New York State.

          3                 Since acquiring Ravenswood, we have

          4  worked closely with the environmental and community

          5  groups, such as the NRDC and CHOKE, to explore ways

          6  in which emissions from existing units can be

          7  lowered even further.

          8                 As a result, KeySpan is implementing

          9  a major air quality improvement program at

         10  Ravenswood, aimed at further reducing NOx emissions

         11  by over 20 percent, or an estimated 750 tons per

         12  year.

         13                 This NOx reduction is equivalent to

         14  shutting down and thus eliminating the emissions

         15  from a conventional 350 megawatt generating station.

         16                 KeySpan has also filed an application

         17  with the New York State Siting Board to expand the

         18  Ravenswood facility through the addition of a

         19  state-of-the-art, high efficiency, ultra low

         20  emitting, gas fired, 250 megawatt electric and steam

         21  generation plant.

         22                 The proposed facility will be 30 to

         23  50 percent more efficient than conventional electric

         24  generators, and will utilize state-of-the-art

         25  emission controls that will make it among the lowest
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          2  emitting facilities ever built.

          3                 The high efficiency feature of

          4  co-generating electric and steam within the same

          5  unit will make the new Ravenswood facility the

          6  lowest carbon dioxide emitter of any of the several

          7  new plants proposed in New York City.

          8                 By displacing older, less efficient

          9  generation in New York City, the proposed Ravenswood

         10  expansion is expected to result in a reduction of

         11  136,000 tons of C02 every year.

         12                 The Natural Resources Defense Council

         13  recognized the environmental benefits of KeySpan's

         14  proposed Ravenswood Cogen facility and it is the

         15  only proposed unit for which they have gone on

         16  record to support. The proposed Ravenswood project

         17  has the further advantage of being capable of fully

         18  replacing a 50-year-old high-emitting steam boiler

         19  that, incidentally, would be exempt from regulation

         20  under this proposed bill.

         21                 Finally, the fastest way to assure

         22  overall reduction in C02 emissions is to expedite

         23  the licensing and construction of new

         24  state-of-the-art high efficiency electric generators

         25  like KeySpan's proposed Ravenswood Cogen Plant. The
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          2  sooner these new modern units come on line, the

          3  sooner the older, less efficient units will be

          4  displaced.

          5                 I urge the Council to support and

          6  concentrate efforts to reduce C02 and other

          7  emissions by endorsing and streamlining the

          8  licensing of the newest and most efficient

          9  technology, rather than by passing legislation that

         10  essentially amounts to a tax on all electric costs

         11  that will have little incremental environmental

         12  benefit.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me clear

         14  something up.

         15                 MR. TEETZ: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I'm glad you

         17  paused for a second.

         18                 This is not a tax. We have no

         19  intention of proposing a tax. This is a penalty. We

         20  want you -- not you, I'm talking about the general

         21  you, to comply with this law or else face a penalty,

         22  we're not taxing anything.

         23                 MR. TEETZ: I understand.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have enough

         25  taxes in this City.
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          2                 MR. TEETZ: It's not technically a

          3  tax, but essentially --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's not in any

          5  way a tax, technically, or figuratively a tax, it's

          6  not a tax.

          7                 MR. TEETZ: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's a nasty

          9  word "tax".

         10                 MR. TEETZ: Now, with regard to our

         11  specific comments on the revised bill, I would first

         12  acknowledge and like to thank the Committee and the

         13  Council staff for adopting several of the comments

         14  that we made during the first round of hearings.

         15                 We believe that the second draft is

         16  headed in the right direction, but that additional

         17  changes are still needed if substantial cost impacts

         18  to New York City consumers are to be minimized and

         19  if the potential for California-like electric

         20  reliability problems are to be avoided.

         21                 The following are our specific

         22  comments on the revised bill:

         23                 The proposed establishment of a C02

         24  emission rate using an average of the year's 1997

         25  through 1999 as a baseline, while better than the
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          2  single year 1999, originally proposed in the

          3  original bill, is still unnecessarily aggressive.

          4  New York City is already one of the most efficient

          5  cities in the country, in terms of per capital

          6  energy use.

          7                 Similarly, depending on whether New

          8  York City's generating units are burning oil or gas

          9  fuel, the average baseline C02 emission rate for New

         10  York City generators is already 20 to 30 percent

         11  lower than the national average C02 emission rate.

         12  And I really would like to emphasize that very

         13  strongly. The City generating units right now are 20

         14  to 30 percent lower in C02 emission rates than the

         15  rest of the country. You are already ahead.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That doesn't

         17  necessarily mean that we're doing well. The other

         18  parts of the country are doing much worse.

         19                 MR. TEETZ: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Coal, they're

         21  doing all sorts of crazy things.

         22                 MR. TEETZ: Exactly, which I'll get to

         23  in a moment.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So I know

         25  everything is relative.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes,

          3  everything is relevant.

          4                 MR. TEETZ: New York City consumers

          5  are already paying premium electric rates because of

          6  the cleaner fuels used by existing generators in New

          7  York City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I always

          9  understood the reason we're paying premium electric

         10  rates is because our electric delivery lines are

         11  underground.

         12                 MR. TEETZ: That's part of it. But we

         13  also use much cleaner fuel.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I remember

         15  that many years ago because there was an attempt at

         16  one time to, not nationalize, but Cityialize

         17  (phonetic) the electric lines and that was the

         18  reason that was given why it was so expensive.

         19                 MR. TEETZ: Well, there are a number

         20  of reasons why the rates are higher in New York

         21  City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I was told

         23  that's the main reason.

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Undergrounding is one of

         25  them. The fuel cost. Because we use much cleaner
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          2  fuels than the rest of the country, that also

          3  contributes to it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. Both of

          5  which benefit the people of the City of New York.

          6                 MR. TEETZ: That's true.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we have

          8  less blackouts than other places.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But aren't

         10  electric lines above ground in some portions of

         11  Queens?

         12                 MR. TEETZ: Yes, they are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, right

         14  where I live.

         15                 MR. TEETZ: I'm not sure. But most of

         16  them are underground, but some of them are above

         17  ground in New York.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Because we

         19  have many one- and two-family homes that have been

         20  there many years and the electrical wiring is above

         21  ground.

         22                 MR. TEETZ: It's quite possible.

         23                 While the rest of the country relies

         24  primarily on low-cost coal for electric production,

         25  New York City plans to use a mix of more costly, but
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          2  much cleaner natural gas or very low sulfur fuel

          3  oil.

          4                 The two fuels compete with one

          5  another, keeping prices competitive and relatively

          6  reasonable, though much higher than the high

          7  emitting coal.

          8                 The bill's target is to reduce what

          9  are already among the lowest C02 emissions in the

         10  country by an additional 20 percent.

         11                 In order to comply, existing units

         12  will be forced to burn natural gas exclusively, even

         13  when it would be less costly to burn low sulfur fuel

         14  oil. This will essentially amount to an increase, I

         15  had called it a tax, but I will refrain from that

         16  word, and that will further increase the already

         17  disproportionately high price of generation born by

         18  New York City consumers.

         19                 Based on current fuel price

         20  forecasts, our estimates indicate that forcing

         21  existing generating units to burn natural gas

         22  exclusively in order to comply with the provisions

         23  of the bill, will add 80 million to $120 million to

         24  the cost of New York City generation every year.

         25                 This represents an increase of about
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          2  ten to 15 percent in the total cost of New York City

          3  generation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You talk about,

          5  I hate to interrupt you --

          6                 MR. TEETZ: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the fact is

          8  we want to get an understanding and you are making a

          9  lot of points.

         10                 MR. TEETZ: That's fine.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The newer power

         12  plants are more efficient?

         13                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So they don't

         15  really need to only burn natural gas, they can burn

         16  fuel and get the efficiency out of them.

         17                 The older powerplants are not as

         18  sufficient. So, what you're trying to encourage is

         19  to rehab or rebuild the old generators, to make them

         20  more efficient.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: What I'm saying is, for

         22  the older plants to comply with the provisions of

         23  the bill, they will have to burn natural gas

         24  exclusively rather than fuel oil.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the best
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          2  thing to do would be to take them off-line and

          3  rebuild them so they would put the new technology in

          4  and then they would be able to compete.

          5                 MR. TEETZ: That's true.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that would

          7  be an incentive to do that.

          8                 MR. TEETZ: That's true.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The only problem

         10  with that is that the costs are passed along to the

         11  consumer, so there is lack of incentive on the part

         12  of the agency, of the companies to do that.

         13                 They figure what the heck, it doesn't

         14  matter to us, we're just passing the cost over to

         15  the consumer, but what we're trying to do is to say

         16  there is a penalty here if you don't reduce your

         17  emissions, and, therefore, what we want you to do is

         18  take them off line, rebuild them and then make them

         19  more efficient.

         20                 MR. TEETZ: Well, in either case,

         21  whether one uses an existing facility to burn

         22  natural gas, which is the more expensive fuel, that

         23  cost essentially has to be borne by the consumers.

         24                 They're building a new power station,

         25  so has inherent capital costs that ultimately have
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          2  to be paid for.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But --

          4                 MR. TEETZ: There is a trade-off as to

          5  which way is most efficient and most economical for

          6  the customer.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Not only is it

          8  efficient, but by rehabbing them or rebuilding them

          9  or reconstructing the old generators, what you are

         10  doing is you're reducing emissions, which is also--

         11  two things, we want to keep the costs down and we

         12  want to reduce the emissions.

         13                 MR. TEETZ: Exactly. And that's why

         14  many of these new --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, if we just

         16  allow you to go ahead, capping your emissions, just

         17  to do it and to pass the cost over to the consumer,

         18  then that's the likelihood what you will do. Unless

         19  you have competition from somebody who is going to

         20  be able to charge less than you.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: Well, clearly, if it's

         22  cheaper to build a new plant, and to operate it much

         23  more efficiently, as the new plants are, then the

         24  economics will drive companies in that direction to

         25  do that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can we do that?

          3  Can we afford to wait?

          4                 The fact of the matter is, we don't

          5  have a definitive study, but we know these emissions

          6  are dangerous and are causing a problem with

          7  completion of the ozone layer causing the greenhouse

          8  effect, and the bulk of the responsibility, you are

          9  the biggest producers of carbon dioxide.

         10                 MR. TEETZ: Well, this is why we

         11  advocate a national program --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No question

         13  about it. But we have an administration that doesn't

         14  understand this.

         15                 MR. TEETZ: Because quite frankly --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I understand

         17  you support the Kyoto accords, but I'm sure you

         18  don't support that portion of the Kyoto accords

         19  which exempts all of the emerging countries, such as

         20  China, who are polluting the air terrible.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: Absolutely correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they're

         23  completely exempt. And the burden is on us.

         24                 MR. TEETZ: I agree.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's why
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          2  everybody in the United States and Congress has

          3  rejected the Kyoto accords, and I support the -- but

          4  I use it as a basis that we should start negotiating

          5  on the basis of the Kyoto, not reject Kyoto, as this

          6  Administration has done.

          7                 MR. TEETZ: Right. We would agree with

          8  you. And we have actually proposed federal

          9  legislation that would require all powerplants in

         10  the entire country to reduce C02 emissions. So, that

         11  would spread the economic burden throughout the

         12  country, rather than focus it on the consumers in

         13  New York City.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We should

         15  require other countries to do that --

         16                 MR. TEETZ: Agreed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To do as well.

         18                 MR. TEETZ: Agreed.

         19                 If I may get back to my remarks?

         20                 Forcing all New York City generating

         21  units to burn natural gas exclusively will have

         22  additional adverse economic, environmental and

         23  electric system reliability consequences.

         24                 For example, if we have to burn

         25  natural gas exclusively, there will be upward
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          2  pressure on the price of natural gas for heating

          3  homes and businesses of your constituents. In

          4  addition, some of New York City's electric supply

          5  will shift towards more competitive imported power

          6  from units just outside of New York City.

          7                 Such imported generation will have

          8  higher emission rates than if it were generated in

          9  New York City, and could actually increase C02 and

         10  other pollutant loadings in the region.

         11                 This potential will have to be

         12  carefully examined in the State Environmental

         13  Quality Review Act review of the proposed

         14  legislation.

         15                 Operating New York City generating

         16  units exclusively on natural gas will weaken system

         17  reliability. The loss of fuel diversity makes the

         18  electric system more vulnerable to possible

         19  California-type blackout situations, in the event of

         20  a sudden loss of natural gas pipeline pressure,

         21  which occurs from time to time during accidents or

         22  mechanical failure or simply the unavailability of

         23  natural gas.

         24                 For all these reasons, we would once

         25  again recommend that C02 regulations be left a
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          2  federal issue, where the reductions can be achieved

          3  across the board, and where the economic burden of

          4  achieving desirable C02 reductions can be shared

          5  equitably across the country.

          6                 New York City residents should not be

          7  forced to pay or foot the bill further to curb

          8  global warming on a local basis. This is a national

          9  and international issue and the costs should be

         10  spread.

         11                 If, however, the Council is intent on

         12  setting an example for the national to follow, we

         13  would recommend that the bill be further revised as

         14  follows:

         15                 Set the baseline starting point

         16  emission rate from which a 20 percent reduction

         17  target would be mandated, at no lower than 1,800

         18  pounds per megawatt hour. This will allow more

         19  flexible fuel options to be utilized by existing

         20  generators, and will still assure that New York City

         21  will continue to be among the leaders in the country

         22  in minimizing C02 emissions.

         23                 Once achieved, New York City C02

         24  emission rates will be about 35 to 40 percent lower

         25  than the rest of the nation.
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          2                 I would point out, as was mentioned

          3  earlier, that the State of Massachusetts recently

          4  enacted aggressive legislation that mandates an

          5  endpoint reduction target of 1,800 megawatts, pound

          6  per megawatt hour.  We are proposing a starting

          7  point of 1,800 pounds per megawatt hour with the

          8  further 20 percent reduction on top of it.

          9                 Compliance options should permit

         10  trading of C02 allowance credits on the open global

         11  market, rather than just from within New York City

         12  sources. This would prevent the hoarding of

         13  allowances for profit and would ensure that the

         14  lowest possible compliance cost consistent with

         15  maximum global warming benefits are achieved.

         16                 The present version of the bill

         17  exempts certain large New York City combustion

         18  sources.

         19                 You mentioned before about an escape

         20  clause. There is an escape clause in here which we

         21  object to. It exempts steam only and combined steam

         22  electric units, regulated by the Public Service

         23  Commission.

         24                 This essentially exempts an

         25  equivalent of about 1,200 megawatts of New York City
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          2  capacity, much of which consists of high emitting

          3  units.

          4                 This is inherently an unfair

          5  competition.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Steam, but not

          7  combining steam and electricity, steam and --

          8                 MR. TEETZ: My reading of the bill is

          9  that it exempted units whose electric rates are

         10  regulated by the Public Service Commission.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We could be

         12  wrong, we will check it out.

         13                 MR. TEETZ: Perhaps I misinterpreted

         14  it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will check it

         16  out.

         17                 MR. TEETZ: If that is the case, I

         18  would object because that's a large population of

         19  units that would be exempt from this bill, and many

         20  of us are high-emitting units.

         21                 KeySpan's proposed co-generating unit

         22  at Ravenswood can provide the equivalent steam

         23  production of four of these exempt units, and do so

         24  with three times lower C02 emissions and 100 times

         25  lower NOx emissions. So, the exemption of such units
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          2  I feel is questionable and should really be reviewed

          3  under a CEQR examination of the bill.

          4                 The proposed allowance trading

          5  program envisioned in the bill should contain a

          6  provision for awarding early reduction credit for

          7  past progressive actions made by New York City

          8  companies to curb C02. These C02 reduction efforts

          9  include utilization of landfill gas, promotion of

         10  fuel cells, residential commercial gas conversions

         11  and natural gas vehicle conversions among others.

         12                 Electric generating units that are

         13  mandated by short-term local electric reliability

         14  rules to burn oil in order to assure electric system

         15  stability should be exempt from C02 compliance

         16  requirements during these mandated periods.

         17                 Again, I would like to thank you for

         18  the opportunity to discuss the proposed bill. We

         19  look forward to continuing to work with you and

         20  Council staff on explaining our comments and

         21  concerns further.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me ask you a

         23  question.

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You state on
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          2  page -- I don't know what page it is -- page three,

          3  I guess, that in order to comply, existing units

          4  would be forced to burn natural gas exclusively.

          5  Aren't you required to -- doesn't the PSC require

          6  you to burn oil, as well as natural gas right now?

          7  You couldn't do this with the pending existing

          8  regulations of PSC, right?

          9                 MR. TEETZ: Units that are capable of

         10  burning oil or natural gas choose which fuel they

         11  want to burn based on economics, the price of gas or

         12  the price of oil. So, we tend to burn the fuel

         13  that's the cheapest, and that gets passed on to the

         14  consumer to their advantage.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Isn't there a

         16  PSC regulation that says you cannot burn exclusively

         17  natural gas?

         18                 MR. TEETZ: Under certain conditions,

         19  certain units must burn oil in order to maintain the

         20  stability of the New York City electric system.

         21                 Too much reliance on natural gas

         22  could result in a blackout situation, in the event

         23  there was a loss of gas pressure, say catastrophic

         24  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Loss of what?
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          2                 MR. TEETZ: Loss of gas pressure. Say

          3  a catastrophic loss of a pipeline.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

          5  you're not getting enough gas?

          6                 MR. TEETZ: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And if you are

          8  not getting enough fuel, of oil, you can also cause

          9  a blackout?

         10                 MR. TEETZ: Generally you have

         11  capacity, tank capacity to store enough oil, but in

         12  a gas-operated facility, if there is a loss, if

         13  there is a damage that occurs to a gas line, and the

         14  pressure drops, that unit will trip off line causing

         15  possibly multiple cascading losses of electric

         16  power.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So there is no

         18  way of storing the gas?

         19                 MR. TEETZ: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, but

         21  nevertheless, it is inaccurate to say that you can

         22  just use natural gas.

         23                 MR. TEETZ: Well, I believe that the

         24  bill is structured the way it is --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because of the
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          2  very reason you stated, you can't do it because PSC

          3  won't let you do it because of the danger of

          4  blackouts.

          5                 MR. TEETZ: Only to a certain limit.

          6  Right now most of the units can switch and burn

          7  either fuel.  Only when --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The PSC doesn't

          9  allow you to just use natural gas exclusively

         10  because of the fact that you just mentioned, that

         11  there is a danger that you won't have an adequate

         12  supply of natural gas at the right pressure.

         13                 MR. TEETZ: That's right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's why it

         15  has to have dual capacity.

         16                 MR. TEETZ: During peak load days,

         17  when the load is very high, you cannot have all the

         18  units in New York City burn natural gas, correct.

         19  That is a system reliability rule.

         20                 Over the course of the year, units

         21  will tend to have to burn more gas than oil in order

         22  to comply with the regulations.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Not exclusively.

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Not exclusively.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  very much. I appreciate your testimony.

          3                 The next witness is Daniel

          4  Cunningham.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Wait a

          6  minute.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You are being

          8  recalled.

          9                 MR. TEETZ: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: On the

         11  Ravenswood situation --

         12                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The people

         14  actually don't want you -- they just want you out of

         15  there. They want you to go away.

         16                 Now, you sent to the hearing, and by

         17  the way, I asked specifically of the engineer who

         18  was making the presentation, which was very much in

         19  engineer terminology, I'm married to an engineer, my

         20  son is an engineer, and I know that they can get

         21  very technical, but basically the people didn't even

         22  understand what your man was saying. That was the

         23  wrong person to send, the engineer, that is.

         24                 Now, in addition to that, I asked

         25  them specifically what were they going to do, were
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          2  they going to get rid of the old ones? Did they have

          3  a plan to replace the old ones? The answer that I

          4  got was no.

          5                 MR. TEETZ: Let me tell you --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And that was

          7  probably one of the only answers that was gotten

          8  during the entire question and answer period.

          9                 MR. TEETZ: Right now there is no plan

         10  to completely eliminate the existing units. And the

         11  reason for that is New York City's load is growing

         12  and all units, plus these new units that are

         13  proposed, need to be on-line and available to meet

         14  the requirements of the City.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I said was

         16  there a plan?

         17                 MR. TEETZ: The plan is that once the

         18  new units are built and operating, because they are

         19  more efficient and cheaper to operate, they will

         20  begin to displace the operation of the older units.

         21  Not completely immediately at least, because on peak

         22  days you need to have all the capacity available to

         23  supply those, that demand.

         24                 But over the course of the year, when

         25  the new units are operating, they will essentially
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          2  enable the older units to reduce the number of hours

          3  per year that they operate. Because you don't need

          4  them on a continuous basis, you only need them on

          5  the peak hot days.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: What about

          7  upgrading and retrofitting them?

          8                 MR. TEETZ: Yes. As I mentioned in my

          9  testimony, within about a year after we acquired

         10  Ravenswood from Con Edison, we implemented a plan,

         11  quite frankly, in response to the public concern --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Right.

         13                 MR. TEETZ: It's called our Air

         14  Quality Improvement Project, at the cost of $10

         15  million we are installing equipment, and we have

         16  already completed part of this, on unit 10, that

         17  will significantly reduce NOx emissions, which are

         18  the primary emissions of concern in the area, from

         19  Ravenswood. The existing units.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The older

         21  units?

         22                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: What is the

         24  time frame for the new ones that you're putting in

         25  and what is the time frame to bring the old units up
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          2  to standard?

          3                 MR. TEETZ: Okay, first of all, all of

          4  the existing units meet all federal, state and local

          5  air pollution requirements; that's number one.

          6                 In fact, they meet them by a

          7  considerable margin. In terms of bringing on the new

          8  unit, we're planning to bring that on by the summer

          9  of 2003.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Something is

         11  wrong with the standards. Maybe we have to change

         12  the standards.

         13                 MR. TEETZ: In fact, KeySpan has been

         14  the sponsor of legislation to change the national

         15  standards to help them be reduced dramatically, such

         16  that the transport of pollutants from the midwest is

         17  where a significant portion of our problem comes

         18  from.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You did

         20  inherit a system, and that's granted. You inherited

         21  a system, and we're optimistic that you want to try

         22  to upgrade the system. Right away you're talking

         23  about improving it with newer units.

         24                 The concern is, is that what is the

         25  time frame we're talking about?
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          2                 MR. TEETZ: Well, as we've tried to

          3  mention to the public in the Ravenswood area, when

          4  our new co-generation facility comes on line in

          5  2003, the total emissions from Ravenswood facility,

          6  including the only units, will actually decrease.

          7  Even though we're adding a new unit, the total

          8  emissions will decrease, because the new unit, which

          9  is extremely clean, almost zero emissions, will

         10  operate for the bulk of the time. The older units

         11  will be able to back off and thus the total

         12  summation of the emissions from the total site will

         13  decrease significantly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Bad is bad.

         15                 How long will it take you to retrofit

         16  the old units?

         17                 MR. TEETZ: The project that I

         18  mentioned before, which is a $10 million air quality

         19  improvement program, will be completed by the latter

         20  part of 2002. And then the new unit will come on in

         21  2003, and, so, the total emissions from Ravenswood

         22  will be significantly reduced.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.

         24  So, let me just be clear.

         25                 The older unit, the $10 million
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          2  project will retrofit the old units by 2002, that

          3  will be completed?

          4                 MR. TEETZ: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And the

          6  newer units will be completed in 2003?

          7                 MR. TEETZ: That's right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         10  much. The next witness --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I would

         12  suggest, though --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next witness

         14  is Daniel Cunningham.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I would

         16  suggest that you work in that community, and work in

         17  the community. They are very concerned. They have

         18  not been informed properly. They need more

         19  information. The Brooklyn Union is, the old Brooklyn

         20  Union which is now KeySpan has always had a

         21  reputation of working with the community. Even

         22  giving us a free -- all right. Okay, all right, I

         23  really want to see that. And I'd like to be informed

         24  of those meetings.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Cunningham,
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          2  and associate, I see.

          3                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Good morning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Push the button.

          5                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You're welcome.

          7                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Good morning. My name

          8  is Daniel Cunningham. I am a technical specialist

          9  with Environmental Strategy and Planning for Con

         10  Edison. And joining me at the table today is Rick

         11  Shanski of our Planning and Forecasting Department.

         12                 I'm presenting comments today for Con

         13  Edison on behalf of my Vice President, Mr. Peter

         14  Lanahan, who could not attend today, and I will

         15  present my remarks in that order.

         16                 I welcome the opportunity to present

         17  our comments today on Intro. 803-A, which would

         18  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         19  York relating to carbon dioxide emissions from the

         20  electric generating units.

         21                 When we appeared before this

         22  Committee last December, we expressed several

         23  concerns that the company had with the bill, and I

         24  asked the Committee to recognize the unique and

         25  important role of Con Edison's steam system as an
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          2  integral part of the energy infrastructure of New

          3  York City.

          4                 We pointed out that this system is

          5  the largest district steam system in the world,

          6  which serves most of the major commercial buildings

          7  in mid- and downtown Manhattan.

          8                 Second, I asked the Committee to

          9  recognize the benefits of the steam system.

         10                 As you know, the system supplants

         11  numerous low level emission sources in buildings,

         12  which is a clear environmental benefit to the City's

         13  air quality.

         14                 Further, I pointed out that the steam

         15  system utilizes efficient steam-electric facilities,

         16  that produce both steam for street sendout and

         17  electricity for customer use.

         18                 Finally, we indicated that the bill

         19  as originally drafted would mean a higher cost for

         20  the steam customers, which would most likely cause

         21  them to consider alternative means of heating and

         22  cooling.

         23                 And the likely alternative, on-site

         24  boilers, would have greater environmental impacts

         25  for the City.
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          2                 Based on these concerns, I urge the

          3  Committee to exempt Con Edison's steam-electric

          4  facilities from the bill.

          5                 The bill, as now amended, exempts

          6  electric generating facilities, if the rates for the

          7  electricity generated by the facilities are

          8  regulated by the Public Service Commission.

          9                 Con Edison's steam electric

         10  generating plants fall within this criteria and

         11  therefore will not be affected by the bill.

         12                 We commend this Committee for

         13  listening to our concerns and addressing our issues

         14  in the current version of the bill, thus meriting

         15  our support.

         16                 Again, this Committee is to be

         17  commended for recognizing the significant benefits

         18  of the steam system, from both an economic and

         19  environmental standpoint and crafting a bill that

         20  strikes a balance to the benefit of all New Yorkers.

         21                 Thank you for your careful

         22  consideration, given to Con Edison's concerns, and I

         23  would be pleased to answer questions from the

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. Could you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  -- are you finished?

          3                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could you

          5  comment on the emissions that come from steam, steam

          6  plants? What the relative emissions are, whether

          7  they are polluting as opposed to fuel and fossil

          8  fuels?

          9                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Our steam plants do

         10  burn fossil fuels, like most plants in the City. And

         11  in what regard are you talking about, C02 or --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are they any

         13  worse than any other plants?

         14                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Just like all the

         15  other plants, we need all the regulated -- all of

         16  the criteria for our permits for our plants.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you saying

         18  that the steam plants, the emissions from the

         19  steam-producing plants, is no worse and no better

         20  than any other plants burning fossil fuel?

         21                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: From our steam only

         22  plants, yes. From our steam electric plants it's

         23  considerably much more efficient than just a

         24  straight electric plant.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What about, I'm

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  talking about emissions are concerned?

          3                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: From an emission

          4  standpoint for a product delivered, they're much

          5  more efficient and cleaner.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So less

          7  emissions than the steam-producing plants?

          8                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: For the co-generation

          9  steam electric plants, yes, that's true.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, if anybody

         11  says that they produce more deleterious materials

         12  and more harmful substances, that wouldn't be

         13  correct?

         14                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: The steam electric

         15  co-generation is the most efficient delivery of

         16  energy you can find, and they are much more cleaner

         17  for product delivered.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Excuse me a

         19  second.

         20                 So it's your position that the

         21  co-generating plants use both steam and electricity

         22  are regulated to PSC and therefore exempt?

         23                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 Any questions?

          3                 Arthur Goldstein, Mark Dworkin and

          4  Tom Cortes. NRG.

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: Good afternoon. My name

          6  is Mark Dworkin, I'm the Asset Manager for NRG for

          7  our Arthur Kill and Astoria Plants in New York City.

          8  With me today I have Tom Coates, who is our Regional

          9  Manager for Environmental Matters, he covers all of

         10  New York State.

         11                 NRG understand the delicate balance

         12  between environmental concerns and the need for

         13  additional generation in New York City.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have a

         15  copy of your testimony?

         16                 MR. DWORKIN: No. We will get a copy

         17  as soon as we can.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We want to make

         19  it part of the record.

         20                 MR. DWORKIN: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Meanwhile, your

         22  voice emissions are part of the record.

         23                 MR. DWORKIN: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now that we're

         25  talking about emissions.
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          2                 MR. DWORKIN: We developed a plan for

          3  our Astoria peaker facility that does just this. But

          4  the situation for our Arthur Kill facility and other

          5  in-city generators is not so easily addressed.

          6                 I'm here today to give you some

          7  specifics as to how we see this bill affecting our

          8  units and the electric market as a whole in New York

          9  City.

         10                 I'd also like to offer some

         11  modification to the rules that may better address

         12  the needs of New York City to improve the

         13  environment, while not excessively increasing energy

         14  cost.

         15                 I ask that you consider adding two

         16  exemptions to the rules. One, an exemption for

         17  peaking generating units, and, two, an exemption for

         18  fuel switching that occurs from periods of system

         19  instability, or natural gas spikes, which actually

         20  you've heard a little bit from the other testimony

         21  as well.

         22                 NRG acquired the Arthur Kill

         23  generating station and the Astoria gas turbins from

         24  Con Ed during the PSC mandated divestiture of Con

         25  Edison generating assets.
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          2                 Con Edison offered their plants for

          3  sale as bundles in order to prevent any single owner

          4  from acquiring market power within the City, and,

          5  secondly, to allow each bundle to independently

          6  comply with the State NOx or Act emission rate

          7  rules.

          8                 The Arthur Kill and Astoria facility

          9  were purchased by NRG as one of these bundles. NOx

         10  compliance and thus operation of the Astoria peakers

         11  is absolutely dependent on concurrent operation of

         12  the Arthur Kill during the summer months.

         13                 These bundles were offered and sold

         14  without any knowledge that a reduction in CO2, a

         15  currently unregulated emission, would be required to

         16  levels attainable only by new combined cycle units.

         17                 As sold, the bundles vary

         18  substantially in their ability to meet the proposed

         19  CO2 reductions.

         20                 Compounding this problem, the

         21  individual reductions are to be measured against the

         22  baselines, which includes all existing New York City

         23  generations, regardless of the divested bundle in

         24  which it was included.

         25                 We appreciate that the staff and
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          2  Council recognized part of this problem, involving

          3  setting the baseline by extending the proposed span

          4  of years used to establish the average.

          5                 The Astoria peakers are located at

          6  the Astoria complex to provide necessary in-city

          7  peaking power, normally burning natural gas and

          8  operating at less than a three percent capacity

          9  factor and contributing less than two percent of the

         10  total in-city CO2 tons.

         11                 While it may be feasible for some

         12  generation owners to replace larger high capacity

         13  units with state-of-the-art combined cycling units,

         14  that's not the case at the Astoria peakers.

         15                 These units do not operate frequently

         16  enough to warrant wholesale replacement, and

         17  existing condition, site conditions, preclude

         18  installation of combined cycle equipment.

         19                 NRG has developed a phased approach

         20  to replacement of some of the older equipment with

         21  newer, higher efficiency and lower emitting turbins.

         22                 These new units still will be unable

         23  to comply with the emission rates required by the

         24  bill.

         25                 Compliance at our Arthur Kill
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          2  facility would require retirement of the existing

          3  units and wholesale replacement with a cost

          4  exceeding $500 million.

          5                 NRG suggests that peakers as a class

          6  should be exempt from the bill, as their overall

          7  contribution to in-city CO2 production is minimal

          8  while being an extremely valuable resource to New

          9  York City, providing reliable generations during

         10  periods of peak demand.

         11                 Over time these units will be

         12  displaced by more efficient generation, and there is

         13  little to be gained environmentally by penalizing

         14  these units with a CO2 target that is impossible for

         15  them to achieve.

         16                 Compounding the issue is that these

         17  units will still be required at times for the next

         18  several years, and almost likely set the clearing

         19  price for electricity during periods of peak demand

         20  and peak pricing.

         21                 Any fine imposed on these units will

         22  be factored into the bid price and will force prices

         23  higher for all New York City consumers.

         24                 We suggest that New York City exempt

         25  peakers as defined in the general provision of the
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          2  acid rain program, which is the federal regulation,

          3  as units with an average capacity of no more than 10

          4  percent over the past three years, and no more than

          5  a 20 percent capacity factor in any one of those

          6  three years. Any unit not meeting the standard would

          7  lose its exemption for the year.

          8                 This definition could also be

          9  expanded to include intermediate capacity generators

         10  as well, further excluding additional high price

         11  generation, which would set clearing prices and

         12  impact customers.

         13                 All of the new generation proposed

         14  for the City is natural gas fired.

         15                 Over-reliance on natural gas to meet

         16  electric generating demands within the City will

         17  have undesirable impacts on reliability and customer

         18  cost.

         19                 The present situation in California

         20  serves as an example.

         21                 On days of peak demand some of the

         22  largest generators in the city are mandated to burn

         23  low sulfur oil with higher resulting CO2 emissions

         24  than natural gas burning would result in.

         25                 This is as a contingency against a
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          2  loss of a major gas supply line, which can

          3  jeopardize the stability to New York City system.

          4                 Additionally, there will be periods

          5  when the price of natural gas becomes prohibitive

          6  for economical generations, requiring either a

          7  switch to a more economic fuel, or a significant

          8  price increase. And I think you have heard some very

          9  similar comments from KeySpan as well.

         10                 NRG believes units which burn oil

         11  occasionally during periods of system instability or

         12  extreme price spikes in natural gas should not be

         13  penalized for any result in increase in CO2

         14  emissions.

         15                 During these situations, units firing

         16  oil should be allowed to substitute actual oil-fired

         17  CO2 rate for the lower natural gas rate based on --

         18  proposed by the bill.

         19                 This data is readily available from

         20  existing regulatory reports and could easily be

         21  included on the implementing regulatory reporting

         22  requirement.

         23                 Asking some form of exemption for

         24  peaking units or fuel switching, the bill should

         25  address these issues through establishment of an
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          2  expanded baseline for determining the in-city CO2

          3  rate. This could be accomplished by utilizing a

          4  broader geographic area, including a more diverse

          5  fuel mix to establish the baseline for future

          6  reductions.

          7                 As an example, the New York State CO2

          8  emission rate for gas and oil units ranges from

          9  1,864 pounds per megawatt hour, to 1,947 pounds per

         10  megawatt hour based on 1996 data from the NRDC PSE&G

         11  report Benchmarking Air Emissions of Electric

         12  Utility Generators in the United States.

         13                 The just introduced Massachusetts

         14  rule, which we heard about, proposed a CO2 rate of

         15  1,800 pounds per megawatt hour, almost 40 percent

         16  higher than the expected New York City rate.

         17                 In closing, based on the information

         18  I presented, NRG asks you to consider and exemption

         19  from the CO2 rule for peakers with a capacity rate

         20  less than 10 percent, and also include an exemption

         21  for switching to liquid fuel during times of system

         22  instability or high natural gas prices.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  address you, and I offer NRG's assistance with any

         25  future requests for data or answers to questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Mr. Rodriguez has a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 Does your company only operate

          8  peakers, or?

          9                 MR. DWORKIN: No. The Astoria

         10  facility, which is mostly what I addressed here, is

         11  a peaker facility located in the Astoria complex.

         12                 We also have the Arthur Kill

         13  facility, which is 850 megawatts located on Staten

         14  Island, and that one would be intermediate, it runs

         15  about 25 percent of the time. Mostly summer, mostly

         16  during the summer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So then how

         18  would you determine peaker?

         19                 MR. DWORKIN: The easiest definition

         20  to rely on for peaker is what the federal government

         21  has, and that's the 10 percent rule.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Ten percent

         23  of the time?

         24                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         25                 Ten percent capacity.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. It

          3  runs ten percent of the time?

          4                 MR. DWORKIN: It doesn't run -- on a

          5  strict sense, no. When we calculate capacity

          6  factors, it's the total capacity, so let's say

          7  Astoria is 650 megawatts capable, times the number

          8  of hours in the year would give you the total

          9  capability.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         11                 MR. DWORKIN: And of that we run about

         12  two and a half percent of that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         14                 So, I had asked that question before,

         15  with regard to companies and with regard to peakers,

         16  and I don't know if you were here when I asked that

         17  question, why would your company not be able to deal

         18  with that and use it as an average between the

         19  peaker and the non-peaker, the one that you used for

         20  more than 25 percent of the time, why did that not

         21  work for your company?

         22                 MR. DWORKIN: Right now the Arthur

         23  Kill unit as a stand alone, and correct me if I'm

         24  wrong, Tom, is about where we think the limits will

         25  fall. So that there is no credits, there wouldn't be
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          2  any other credits generated by the other unit, to be

          3  able to use -- for use in Astoria.

          4                 MR. COATES: The Arthur Kill facility

          5  burning natural gas right now we figure is somewhere

          6  around what the New York City baseline is today,

          7  somewhere in the 1,300 pound per megawatt hour, and

          8  that's where that facility is, which is very clean

          9  and well below, you know, national average or

         10  anything proposed in Massachusetts.

         11                 We will not -- once the bill reduces

         12  to that level, we are not going to be able to have

         13  any credits generated from that unit to compensate

         14  the peaking that are at Astoria.

         15                 So the mention of having something to

         16  system average with, there won't be the additional

         17  reductions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To burn oil at

         19  that plant you would be way above the emission

         20  average?

         21                 MR. COATES: Yes, oil --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The only reason

         23  you're able to make it is by using natural gas.

         24                 MR. COATES: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,
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          2  these are dirty plants. These are plants that are

          3  really in need for rehabbing and rebuilding.

          4                 MR. COATES: It's a tough question to

          5  answer in the sense that --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, who did

          7  you buy the plants from?

          8                 MR. COATES: The answer is that

          9  they're older units. They comply with all the

         10  regulations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. But who

         12  did you buy these plants from?

         13                 MR. COATES: Con Edison.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Con Edison. And

         15  when Con Ed got out of the business -- getting out

         16  of the business of producing electricity, is now in

         17  the business of transmission of electricity, selling

         18  it. So, you bought that plant there, and it's an old

         19  plant, and it's a plant in badly need of

         20  rehabilitation and rebuilding and you don't feel it

         21  was worth your while to rebuilding the plant so they

         22  can be made more clean?

         23                 MR. DWORKIN: You've got to address

         24  this in two different pieces.

         25                 Our Astoria plant --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, I'm talking

          3  about your plant in Arthur Kill. The Astoria plant

          4  is a different situation. That's a peaker plant.

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The other one is

          7  a 20 percent plant you say, it's not a peaker plant.

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: Right. It's an 850

          9  megawatt plant, an estimated replacement value with

         10  a cogen is about $500 million. So, it's not

         11  economical to replace it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How about

         13  rehabbing? How about just rebuilding it?

         14                 MR. DWORKIN: Well, we've knocked this

         15  around. The real issue here is that CO2, in and of

         16  itself is a function of the heat rate of the plant,

         17  and there is really no way on these plants to

         18  increase the heat rate.

         19                 It's kind of like --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even if you

         21  rebuild them, huh?

         22                 MR. DWORKIN: Well, rebuild -- I mean,

         23  rebuild is replace for the use. I mean, it's like

         24  the gas mileage on your car. I mean, is there

         25  anything you can do to increase the gas mileage on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  your car? You can tune it up a little bit, and we do

          3  that all the time --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you bought an

          5  inefficient -- you bought an inefficient generator.

          6                 MR. DWORKIN: I think from what you

          7  heard from Tom, it's not that inefficient.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If you use gas.

          9                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But if you use

         11  oil it's inefficient. And you're subject to the

         12  vicissitudes of gas and the pressure problem with

         13  gas, and the economics of gas.

         14                 MR. COATES: The efficiency of the

         15  unit is not diminished by burning oil, the CO2 rate

         16  is higher when burning oil.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we're

         18  talking about both. You're saying it's more

         19  efficient because gas is more efficient, and there

         20  are less emissions from gas.

         21                 MR. COATES: That part of efficiency,

         22  correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: With respect to

         24  your --

         25                 MR. COATES: Not as far as
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          2  electricity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: With respect to

          4  your Astoria plant, that's a peaker plant.

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how clean

          7  are those generators?

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: I think you head KeySpan

          9  say -- or NRDC, the peakers, the nature of peakers

         10  are that they're not clean burning units.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, they're

         12  old plants.

         13                 MR. DWORKIN: First of all, they're 25

         14  years old, but also the nature of the quick start

         15  and the ability to shut them on and off and respond

         16  quickly implies that they're not fuel efficient,

         17  they're the race cars.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you bought

         19  old generators, and then taking advantage of the

         20  fact, and this is your business, and I understand

         21  that, that Con Ed was getting out of the business

         22  and they need somebody to buy their generators, and

         23  you're the ones who bought them, and you just use

         24  them when you can.

         25                 MR. DWORKIN: Mr. Chairman, NRG is in
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          2  the process now of upgrading some of the peakers at

          3  Astoria. They have four 15 megawatt units there, and

          4  they're in the process of upgrading the first one,

          5  they're going through the PSC process to do that and

          6  then for the other three they're going to go through

          7  an article 10 process.

          8                 So, assuming they get approval, they

          9  will be upgraded.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In your

         11  statement you stated that you can't comply with the

         12  proposed law because your peakers, but peakers

         13  themselves don't go on line that often.

         14                 MR. DWORKIN: They don't but --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, how would

         16  you not be able to comply with it?

         17                 MR. DWORKIN: Well, there are two ways

         18  to comply, obviously. It's either reduce the

         19  emissions, which is impractical for these units or

         20  pay the fine, and the time that these units come on

         21  line --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I thought you

         23  said fine, not tax.

         24                 MR. DWORKIN: The times that these

         25  come on line are the times in peak demand when the
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          2  prices are the highest.

          3                 So, as we said before, the cost of

          4  any fine would be factored into the bid price for

          5  these units, and the other thing that's interesting,

          6  I don't know how familiar you are with how the ISO

          7  works in New York State, but the highest price

          8  accepted unit sets the clearing price for the entire

          9  market for that time period, so that even if we do

         10  build lots of new plants, if there is still one

         11  megawatt generated by an old plant, and that sets

         12  the clearing price, then that sets the price for the

         13  whole market for that time period.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's been

         15  predicted that we're about 500 megawatts short for

         16  this summer or else we're going to have brownouts.

         17                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that's what

         19  the reason is that we're seeing this rush to

         20  building these alleged temporary plants.

         21                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In Astoria and

         23  other places. Does that -- when they figure

         24  approximately 500 megawatts short, does that include

         25  the use of your --
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          2                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even full blast,

          4  we would still be 500 megawatts short?

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes. Well, that 500

          6  megawatts includes the contingency. There is an

          7  assumption that a portion of all the generation

          8  isn't running during the peak time. So that's why

          9  last summer, we had the same shortage last year of

         10  400 megawatts and we didn't necessarily see a

         11  blackout, and even though you did see some hot days.

         12  There is a reserve requirement, and that's what some

         13  of that 400 megawatts represents.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 MR. DWORKIN: Okay. Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: What is the

         18  time frame for upgrading the peakers --

         19                 MR. DWORKIN: Sure. Right now we just

         20  got board approval last week to go ahead and

         21  purchase the equipment for the initial upgrade,

         22  which similar to the NYPA proposals, although I hate

         23  to compare us to NYPA, is below 80 megawatts and not

         24  subject to Article 10. But any further expansion,

         25  which we're proposing is retirement of three
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          2  additional 15 megawatt units, that are these older,

          3  less efficient units, with three new units that will

          4  total, they are each 80 megawatts, and that will

          5  help to get through the Article 10 process. And as

          6  we've seen in New York State so far, the first plant

          7  that made it through Article 10 took four years.

          8  We're anticipating that that's going to accelerate

          9  and that it might be a two or three-year process.

         10  So, I wouldn't expect to see any of the additional

         11  three on line any sooner than three years out.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You've

         13  already purchased them, am I correct?

         14                 MR. DWORKIN: The equipment?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: No, the

         16  plants.

         17                 MR. DWORKIN: Oh, the Astoria --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: That's

         19  right.

         20                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes, we own the Astoria

         21  plant.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Now, if we

         23  have a peak season or points in the season that we

         24  reach our peak, you will use those plants now?

         25                 MR. DWORKIN: Oh, sure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: As they are?

          3                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And you

          5  don't see upgrading them for about two or three

          6  years?

          7                 MR. DWORKIN: Well, like I said, we're

          8  going to retire one 15 megawatt unit. We anticipate

          9  doing that for next summer, 2002, and having an

         10  additional 80 megawatt unit to replace that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And what's

         12  the time frame for that?

         13                 MR. DWORKIN: That's 2002. That's

         14  summer 2002. And then in the meantime, that's kind

         15  of our test project for the site, if we successfully

         16  build this one additional unit, it's our intention

         17  to go and permit the additional three, which will

         18  take the Article 10, which we, like I said, expect a

         19  two or three-year process.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         21                 MR. DWORKIN: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Rodriguez

         23  has a question.

         24                 I understand you met with our staff,

         25  and that you were supposed to get back with some
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          2  comments, and we still haven't received those

          3  comments.

          4                 MR. COATES: You will have them by

          5  this afternoon or tomorrow morning.

          6                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: Most of the comments are

          9  what we presented here. We were prepared to --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But we don't

         11  have your written statements, and we'd like a copy

         12  of your written statements, as soon as possible.

         13                 Angel.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes, thank

         15  you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 Just I'm a little confused. What's

         17  the capacity of your Astoria plant?

         18                 MR. DWORKIN: It's about 650

         19  megawatts. But, again, it's 32 individual gas

         20  servants.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         22                 And you're going to replace four of

         23  them?

         24                 MR. DWORKIN: Four, that's right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Four of
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          2  them?

          3                 MR. DWORKIN: Four of them, right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And what

          5  led to the decision to replace four of them, as

          6  opposed to 32 or as opposed to two, or as opposed to

          7  ten?

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes, there are three

          9  different types of gas turbins there, and the bulk

         10  of them at Astoria, they're actually jet engines,

         11  like open airplane. Those ones, we have a fairly

         12  large fleet, they are reliable, and out of any of

         13  the other units at Astoria relatively clean.

         14                 There's two other types of units that

         15  are industrial gas turbins of two different sizes,

         16  and of those, the least economical and the highest

         17  polluting are the smaller ones, and those are the

         18  ones that we've determined we're willing to retire.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, then,

         20  if you retire those, and those are the highest

         21  polluting ones, and the other ones are pretty

         22  efficient, then you'll be able to comply with this

         23  bill. That's why I'm confused.

         24                 MR. DWORKIN: No, what we're telling

         25  you is that from the standpoint of the peakers,
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          2  given where we expect -- what's the emission rate

          3  now for the peakers?

          4                 MR. COATES: The peakers right now are

          5  up in the Massachusetts level, the 1,800 to 2,000

          6  per megawatt hour.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: This is

          8  what I understood.

          9                 I understood that there are four

         10  turbines that apparently are inefficient and don't

         11  work as well as the other 28, or whatever the other

         12  number is.

         13                 MR. COATES: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And, so,

         15  based on that information, that burn less

         16  efficiently and less environmentally friendly, I

         17  guess is the right word to use; right?

         18                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Does that

         20  make sense?

         21                 So, you're going to replace these

         22  four and presumably they're going to be more

         23  efficient, they're going to lower your emissions.

         24                 MR. DWORKIN: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And they're
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          2  going to -- so, in essence, you're not going to go

          3  against the spirit of this bill.

          4                 MR. DWORKIN: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: This bill

          6  is designed, I think, to sort of push you on your

          7  way, and you've already taken that step.

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So you guys

         10  are right on target. So, if we were to remove or

         11  exempt peakers, I don't know that it would help your

         12  company. It may help another company, but based on

         13  what I heard from your -- I don't know that it would

         14  help your company. I'm a little confused.

         15                 MR. DWORKIN: On an overall averaging

         16  picture it would because the CO2 emissions from the

         17  newly-proposed units just make the average that

         18  would calculate where we think the baseline would

         19  start. And as you would start to reduce it, then

         20  those will incur fines, plus the existing. We're

         21  also only talking about replacing about ten or 15

         22  percent of the overall generation at our Astoria

         23  facility. So, just kind of on a weighted average

         24  basis --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.
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          2                 MR. DWORKIN: We'd still have a

          3  problem.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: May I

          5  suggest that maybe you should look at a couple more

          6  --

          7                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And then

          9  you'll be right on target.

         10                 MR. COATES: A simple clarifying

         11  point. Simple cycle and combined cycle are two

         12  different kinds of turbins. It can start with the

         13  one turbin, and you can add to the back of it by

         14  adding another steam drum, like a conventional

         15  powerplant, and you gain more efficiency in doing

         16  that, but you have to have cooling water.

         17                 The Astoria facility does not have a

         18  footprint or access to the water to put in or even

         19  the amount of ground to put in a dry cooling system,

         20  to build a combined cycle unit. Combined cycle units

         21  would be the ones that would set the baseline for

         22  CO2. They're more efficient, so their CO2 pounds per

         23  megawatt are going to be the lowest.

         24                 A simple cycle unit, which is all we

         25  can do at Astoria will not be at that level. Even
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          2  though it's a brand new state-of-the-art turbin,

          3  it's never going to meet that efficiency.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

          5                 MR. COATES: It's clean, it couldn't

          6  be any finer, but it emits more CO2.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Because of

          8  the inability to cool it appropriately?

          9                 MR. COATES: Right. No more NOx, no

         10  more of the other pollutants, but CO2 will be

         11  higher.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         13                 I have just one final question.

         14  That's okay. Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 Howard Morrison of Orion Power

         18  Holdings.

         19                 Welcome. Nice to have you here. Sorry

         20  you are the last, but you're not the least.

         21                 MR. MORRISON: On behalf of Orion

         22  Power, I thank the Council members of the Committee

         23  on Environmental Protection for the opportunity to

         24  speak before you today.

         25                 On December 4th, 2000, Tom Webb of
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          2  Orion Power presented testimony before this

          3  Committee on the proposed CO2 legislation. At that

          4  time, Mr. Webb proposed amended language to the

          5  legislation so that powerplant owners who have taken

          6  "substantive steps" towards improving the

          7  efficiency of their existing powerplant not be

          8  subject to penalties.

          9                 We are dismayed that this amended

         10  language has not been considered in the A version of

         11  the proposed legislation.

         12                 We ask the Committee to consider this

         13  amended language that would prevent what we believe

         14  would be an unintended result of punishing

         15  responsible companies.

         16                 Orion Power respectfully asks further

         17  that Section 24-141.1(h) be removed in its entirety.

         18  This section purports to exempt from legislation

         19  "any electric generating unit when the rates for

         20  the sale of electricity produced by such electric

         21  generating unit is subject to the jurisdiction of

         22  the New York State Public Service Commission." This

         23  section is at odds with the stated goals of the

         24  legislation to maximize plant efficiency and

         25  ultimately reduce the rates of carbon dioxide
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          2  emissions. That is, there is no rational basis for

          3  exempting selected electric generating plants from

          4  enforcement, for example, the generating stations

          5  owned only by Con Edison, simply because they are

          6  subject to this jurisdiction of the New York State

          7  Department of Public Service.

          8                 The New York State Public Service --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just let me

         10  further explain to you. Under the law we are

         11  preempted, we are preempted, there is another

         12  jurisdiction, a higher jurisdiction has jurisdiction

         13  over it, and that means that we cannot legislate.

         14                 MR. MORRISON: The New York State

         15  Public Service Commission does not regulate

         16  emissions of carbon dioxide from generating stations

         17  under its jurisdiction. These generating stations

         18  emit substantial amounts of carbon dioxide and will

         19  substantially contribute to overall New York City

         20  carbon dioxide emissions.

         21                 We believe that the extension is

         22  arbitrary and capricious, and for this reason, and

         23  the reasons aforementioned, we cannot endorse the

         24  legislation in its current form.

         25                 Furthermore, we would like to reserve
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          2  the right for further comments on this legislation

          3  due to the short notice.

          4                 I thank you for the opportunity to

          5  address the Council on this matter.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As I understand

          7  it, PSC regulates the rates of these particular

          8  steam-generating plants. Your company and companies

          9  like yours are deregulated, therefore they are under

         10  the jurisdiction of this, we can legislate. But if

         11  they were regulated, the rate of your organization,

         12  then we wouldn't have jurisdiction either.  That's

         13  the explanation of it.

         14                 Any questions?

         15                 Thank you very much. Committee

         16  adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:02 p.m.)
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